eleazed under the John F.
ennedy Azzaszination Becords
Collection Act of 1332 [44 USC
07 Mote], Cazeft: MW BR3E0

ate: 11-17-2022

__L-—/_.,f—-”

MW 65360 Docld:32989542 Page 1




= BS

Vol. 12

® | Chre Nuited States Senate

Report of Proceedings

Hearing held before

Seleot Commitiee o Study Goverumental Opsrations

With Respael to Intelligence Agtivities

TWTEIAECEICE IRVESTIGATICY

R A‘NED . )
\Nvo%*“f‘wss?g@ &%
; AT e "

w ot

ONE A

‘ Wednesday, Noverber 19, 1995

Washington, D. C.

WARD & PAUL

410 FIRST STREET, S. E.
"‘ WASHINGTON, D. C. 20003

(202) 544-6000

XMW 65360 Docld:32383543 Page 2



L

Phons (Area 202) 544-6000
]

10

11

12

WARD & PAUL

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

" 25

— ——n Gowet  w— e o o

STATEMENT OF:

Testimony of James B. Adams, Deputy Associate Director
FBI Intelligence Division

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED

HEREIN 1S UMCLASSIFIED . |/
DATE LQZ?E%ZE Bvﬁp&mtz%

Mol

NV 65360 Docld:32945542 Page 3

PAGE

1738




KELLYGSH

Phone (Area 202) 544-600C

10-
11
12

13

WARD & PAUL

15
16
17
18

19

410 First Streot, S.E,, Washington, D.C. 20003

INTELLIGENCE INVESTIGATION

Wednesday, Novamber 19, 1975

United States Ssnate,
Select Comnittse to Study Governmental

Operations with Respect to
TAINED
NFORMATION CON

HERE! S UNCLA SSW“ED Pbx A Intelligence Activities,
EmﬂE pﬂ"' . ' :
Wﬂﬂb . Washington, D.C.

The Committee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:05 o'clock
a.m., in Rqom 318, Russell Senate Office Building, thse
Honorable Frank Church (Chairman) presiding.

Prasent: Senators Church {(presiding), Hart (Michigan),
Mondale, Huddleséon, Hart (Colo) Baker, Tcwef, Gold, Mathias and Schweiker.

Also present: FrederickrA.O. Schwarz, Jr.,’chief Counsal

dand Curtis R. Smothers, Minority Counsel.

The Chairman. The hearing will plzass come to oraer.

Our witnesses today are Mr. James B. Adams, the Dsputy
Associate Diractor of the FBI, and Mr. R%ymand Wannall, who
ls.t he Assistant Director in charge of the Intelligeance |
Division of the FBI.

Before I swear the witnessses, Senator Mondale hasg asked
if ha mlvh“ make an op&nlrg statemant., And for ithiat puxrposs

the Chair recognizes the distinguished Senator from Minnssota.

NW 85360 Docld:32989543 Page 4
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Senator Mondale. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I have always supported ths FBI. It is clsarly the finest,
most profsssional iaw enforcement agency in the natio#.an
piqbébly in the world. In apprehending robbers, fbiliﬁg
kidnappers, catching'fugitivas, the FBI has an outstandiﬁg
record. |

This is based on my own &xperience with the FBI ih,ﬁy

own state where I served as Attorney General. The vést bulk

-0f its work is davoted to law enforcement and legitimate

counter-gspionagse.

In these fields the FBI deserves fully the admiration
and respect which Americans traditionally hald for the Bursau
and its personnsl. But'in one area, domestic intelligance,
the FBI, in my opinion, has clearly gons astray; It now
appears tﬁat there was an.underworlé within the FBI which
took th; tools, techniques and zeal which &as so éffecéive
against the real foreign threats and turned. them in upon some
of the Amsrican people.

Yesteréay this Committes heard_soma of the mést disturbind
tastimony that can be imagined in a fréé society, .We.heard
evidence that for decades the institutions designed to enforce
tﬁe laws and constitutions of our country itself has besn
engagiﬁg in condﬁct that violates the law and the Constituticn,
Wa heafd that the FBI, which is a part of the Department of

Justice, took justice into its own hands by sesking to punish

NWW 65360 Docld:329839543 Page 5
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those with unpopular ideas. We learned that the chief law
enforcement agency in the Federal government decided that it

did not need laws to investigate and supprass the peaceful

“and constitutional activities of those whom it disapproved.

We heard testimony that the FBI, to protect the country
against those it believed had totalitarian political views,
employed the tactics of totalitarian societies.against
American citizens. We heard that the FBI attempted to dastroy
one of our greatest leaderslin the field of civil rights, and
then replace him with someone of the FBI's choosing.

From the evidence the Committee has obtained it is
clear that théiFBI for decades has cbnducted surveillance over .
the personal and political activities of millions of - .
Americans. .Evidently, no meeting washtoo'smally no group
too insigﬁif;cant to escaps their attention. It did not
;eem to-matter whether the politiés of thess Ame&icéns were
legal or radical or whether the pafticipants we?e well-kﬁown
or obscure. It did not matter whether the information was
intimate and pgrsonal. The FBI created indsxes, more
commonly cailed'enemy lists, of thoﬁsands of Americans and
targeted many of the Americans on thesé_iis;s for specialr
harassment. Hundreds of thous;nds of Amegricans were victims
of this surveillancs prégram. Most of this was done in secret.

Much of it was kept from Congress and ths Justice Department

and all of it from the American people. Mo ene outside the




B A 5. o 0 ot i e n e et ) e R . . - R . LN IR
N p S e e e 43 PN U u - o e e [

gsh 4 1730

©

g

3 : .

‘ g 1 FBI has ever had an opportunity to know and appreciate the
N . : -
) é 2 full extent of the domastie surveillance program that was

£ ° tﬁén being conducted. T-.1. ..
4 Thus we see that just as 'in the case of the CIA the
5 key issue was accountability: How we can assure that the
6 sacret instrumsnts of government are'acéountable +o ths

-7 peoﬁlé,:éhe Congress and the law.

é ft is clear that thg FQI'S §uthority for these proérams
° is essentiallindn—existent, I am not persua&ed that thé

10 secret Piésidentiai orders of.éreside;t Roosevelt support the

11 Domestic Intelligence progfam, and evénrif it did, I do

- 12 not ﬁelieve that any President has the authority to order the

WARD & PAUL

13 FBI or anyone else to_spy'on Americans, to burgle their hoﬁes,
. i4 to wiretap fhsm, to open their mail or to blackmail th;m.

15 .One of the most digturbing aspects of this affair is
16 ﬁhat the FBI never paid very much attentioﬁ to ﬁheth@r their
17 activities weée authorized or not or whether they were lsgal
18 and corstitutional. Ons former- senior intal;igépce officex
19 | has testified that he never once heard a discussion about
-20 .legality'pr constitutionality. Most governﬁents in history
21 have reiied on some form of police power to determine whaﬁ
22 views would preva%l iﬁ éheir society. However;”America was
R3 "based on the.revolutionary'éoncept.that tha pééplé should

k 25 | and what is not.

24 decide what is right and what is wrong, what is acceptabls

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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.That is what we meant by & free governmgnt, and our
forsefathers ware convinced that-it can exist only through the

-

greatéstktolerance oftspesch énd opinion. They placed their‘
faith in-thg psople to reﬁéin alert to %gcroacﬁments on thair
liberty.’ |

The foundérs of our country knew that the greatest
danéer to freedom ?omes from the éfiortg of government to
suppress the opinions ofnifsoppogents. éhey,get up a
system which limited the powers of~gove¥nm§ﬁtf-boﬁnd it in
the‘cdnstraints of the law, and Qrogibited it from ipfringing-
on the rights.pf people to free~expres§ion; And through
the.separation‘of power, the system. of'chapks and baiancas,
they triéd to aésﬁré‘that the Exscutivs would bs accountable
to . the peopls throuéh the Congress. ~

For %ha 200'yea£s)6f ouflgxistanCe,és a nation the
preservation of iiberéy héé.béén a constant struggls. . Whethgr
it has;been‘éie Ali%n and Sedition Acts during the Frgﬁch
Revolutioé, tha Réd Scare and thé_Pélﬁer.Raids of Wérld War
I, 6r McCarthyism after World War 'II, or Army spying during
ﬁhe vietﬁam War, the government has iat a-fear of unorthodox
opinion lead it into the trap of infringing upon ths
Constitution in'the‘name of interﬁal security.

The issuss Qe confront today are a pgrt of a continuing

drama of American democracy. It is proof, if we =var nseded

it, that the price of liberty is ‘eternal vigilance.

NV 65360 Docld:3298%542 Page 8
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4R£velations of abuse of power do not threaten domestic
security. Thsse heafinés do'not weakan the FBI. What wsaksans
it is its failure to adhere o ths proper role of law
enforcement. Somshow it forgotthat this was its job. It
bégan to usa its enargy to spy on Amsricans whose only
offense wWas an axpressing épinipnsthqt some in the FBI did not
like. It confusad félk.of 9&619#0& with acts.of violence,

and all too- often paid more attention to the talk than to

"the “act. )

- The answer, of courss, is that violence justifies

prosacution, not surveéillancs.. Our sscurity is not improved

‘by watching those-who commit crimses. Security from violancs

ligs in act;va and vigérous law enforcémaﬁt of those who
@fé committing crimes. -Sgcurity fram déngerouS'ideas;rif
we nsad any‘security, should comarnot from the FBI but
from the merit of bettar_ideas, in thse gooa sense of the
Amsrican. pzople. |
) Our liberty is besé protectad by scrupulcus adherénce
to ths law and the Coﬂstitution by #ﬁe agagcies of government.
No~govgrnmant agenéy‘likes te ba.tﬁe sﬁbjéct of public
scrutiny. i know‘thssg h§v5‘been difficulé times for ths
presenf legd&rsh%p of ths FBI, ﬁgny of whom.w&re ﬁot involved
in these prgérams at'all.. But if thef had bsen .spending a lot
of tima'responﬁing to CQﬁgrassional inyésﬁigatioﬁs, they

could not forget that this is the first vime in 50 years that

- -
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‘attention from the necessity of reform.

13

19

-~

the EBI had bean subjectéd to .public scrutiny.

e As palnful as uhls -process.is, I ‘hope the FBI itself.

would wnlcome the opportunlty to let in some frnsh air and

-

come to grlps with. tbe problems in candor and not rstreat. 1nuo

past patterns of stir;ing'up public fears to distract our

Mr. éh§irman,’méy'l say that yasterday I am told that
following our hgari#g the ?Bi responded exactly in tﬂé'spirit
tﬁat I had hoped it.wquld. If fhey can tak;‘this constructive
approach, I have no doubt that the FBI will benefit from

this attention. I want to see a strong FBI, an FBI strong

in law enforcement, in the detesction of crime, and in the -

_.gathering of legal evidence: for prosecution and conviction,

‘but an FBI without abuses..

1As_we.proceéd.with thesg‘hearings;todgy, we. should also
bear in mind the responsibility for the abuses we have

uncovared doss not rast on the FBI alone. We in.the

Congress have been derelict. t should not have tgken until

this date for us to discharge our responsibility for
investigating FBI and other domestic.intsiligence.

: We sbould-also realize that the FBI has. bsen performing
a functwon which many Amerlcans, and at tlmes the vast
maJorlﬁy of Amerlcans{ have wanted to sees undertakan. When
popular opinion brands a group unAmerican and subversiva

merely becauss of its political views, all toc often the FBI

NW «55}&{} D{)cld 3298‘9543 Page 10
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has reponded to public &xpectations and from preésurenfrom
a higﬁer authority in government.

Whils this does-ndt éicuse what happansd, Qe should
temper ouf brificism of the'FBI's excesses by understanding that
in largse pagt—it was only the iﬁstrument of our own inﬁolefance.
Indeed, i bglieve théé is why ouf.laWs a;d the charter of the -
FBI must-be carafully redrawn té protect the FBI'é inﬁegrity
from political‘pressures and hys?eria. ‘

Finally, it would be a miétake to regard the abuses
of the-FBIrés those of évil-méQ. 'ihe FBI has always been
composed of dedicated and hard-working public servants who
;éek to do their jobs as gesf they can. Thé lesson we learn
from this ﬁistory is tﬂét we cannot keep éur libertyrsecuré.'
by.relying alone on the good faith of gan.witg'great pow=ar.

As -Mr, Justice Brandeis once wrote:

nExpe;ience should teach us to be moé; on guard to
protect libsxrty when govsrnmeﬁt'; purposes aré baneficient.
fhe greatest dangers éo liberty lurk in the insidious

encroachment of men of zsal, well-mganing but without

‘understanding.” .. U -

It is my hope that the FBI witnesses‘we~yill hear today
can eniighteﬁ'us as to how it can conduct .internal security
surveillance progréms which do not infringe on our
constitutionai libertiés. I hope thgy can suggest iron—clad

assurancss that the abuses of the past will not be repeated.

| MW 65360 Docld:32989543 Page 11
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We nesd more protection than promisas of selfurestraint
by men of good will.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

- The Chairman. Thank you, S&nator Mondale. That is

an gxcallent statement with which I would like to be fully

‘associated.

Senator Hart of Michigan. I wouid,-Mr. Chairman, also,
éxcept tha; I want to make clear my family certainly did not
suéport, encourags, or by its'vécal position give any
indication to ths Buresau that they could do what they did.

I don't want to go'toé far in spggesting that what we heaxrd
yvesterday was simplg responding by the Bureau to the mood
of those years. ‘

In thosa'years‘if we had‘gnown what you wére doing,
Inl&y»dough, most familiss would have said séap it.

Senator Mondale. .That is true. I think one of the

points that we might avar to is the Houston Plan and the

Y

“tremendous pressure the FBI was ‘placed under to again rassums

techniques that it had abandoned in- 1966, ﬁhara is no
quesﬁion that they were getting privéta prassure from higher
authority to do thingé. In that instance they didn't want
it. |

The Chairman. Wsll, I was struck with the fact that

the Houston Plan, as illegal as it was, was limited to techniquis

far more restrictive than the far-reaching methods that weare




gsh 10

Phone (Area 202) 544-5000

WARD & PAUL

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

NW 65360 Docld:32989543 Page 13

10

11

1=

13

14
- 15

16

17

18

19
20
21
22
23

24

25

_also.

employ=ad by:the FBI during the ysars that we have reviewad in
yesterday's haarinés. They led beyond anything that was
éver containad in any‘officiai document raquesting from
the President additional authorit?.

Now I think, Mr. Adams, Mr. Wannall, in ;ddition +o
swearing you bbtﬁ, if you are going to have oécasion to
ask others who ars with yéu to testify in response to certain

questions, that it_woula be well at this time to swear them

So if that is thse casa,,ényoﬁe who agticipates that he
may be. testifying in:this morning's hesaring in responés,gé
questions,.if you will-all stand and taksa the'oaéh at this
time. | ’
| ﬁo you and each of you solemnlé swear that.all of the
testimony that you will give in tﬁese.procegdingéwill be
tﬁe trutﬁ, the whoie truth, and ﬁothing but ths truth, so‘
help you Goé? L c -
MrgcAdams.::I;dO;z}
. Mr. Wanhall:. Itdb.: R ={  coaL il T
T; The Ghairman: wAfter:yesterday's hearing Ifaskéd the stafff

to’ furnish me with the Statutory authority that presently e#ists

that could be said to relate to. the: FBI's_ intelligence activitigs,

which was of course:the subject of yésterday‘s hearings.
And I am furnished in'rssponse to that requast

Title XVIIT,rSection 533 of the United States Code, which

LA e e tpemy
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reads as follows: "The Attorney General may appqint officials:
one, to detect and prosecute‘crimeé against the United Stétes;

two, to assisti in the protection of the person of the

President; and thrse, to conduct such other invastigations

. regarding-official matters under the control of the Department

of Justice énd the Depaftment of Stéta as maybe dirgct§d by
the Atiorney General. |

. Now yesterday, Mr. Wangal;, Qe were told about a series
‘ inde=ad,

of activities that wera undertaken by the FBI, and

initiated within the FBI, the purposas of which was to harass

and. discredit Dr. Martin Luther XKing.
Now I am not referring»to'the;;esults of any FBI
investigative activity, but rathsr, I am refarring to thess

kinds of initiatives that were undertaken for +the purposs of
= P

.elther harassing or embarrassSing or otharwise discrediting

Mr., King himsalf.
- My first question is was Dr. RKing, in his advocacy of

equal rights for black citizens, advocating a course of

)

action that in ths opinion of the FBI constituted a crime?

NW 65360 Docld:32989543 Page 14
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- TESTIMONY OF JAMES-B. ADAMS, DEPUTY ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR
.. "OF THE FBI, AND. RAYMOND WANNALL, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, -
.7 “FBI INTELLIGENCE DIVISION

Mr. -Adams. Né, sir.

The Chairman. éoihe,was not .then thought to be‘engaged
in any‘crimina; activiéy. In fact, hs was preaching, as I
remembér those da§s, ﬁon—viplence, was hes not, as a:method
of adhieving aqual‘rights:for biack citizens?

Mr. Adams. That's right,'his.advocacy for civil rights.

The Chairmén. His advocacy of .civil :ights was non-
vitlent and therefore legal in character.

Mr. Adams. That was not the basis of our investigaﬁion
of him.

The Chairman. But as you have said, he - was not

-

engaging in any unlawful activity in connaction with his

advocacy of squal rights for black citizsus.

Is that corrsct?
Mr. Adams. Yas, sir.

The Chairman. Well, is it true that at one tims thé

FBI undertook to discourage an American college from confarring

an honorary degree on Dr. King?
‘Mr. Adams. Yes, sir.
The Chairman. On what legal basis doss the FBEI have

a right +o interfare, in an effort to discourage a colleage from
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Gonferring an honorary degree upon a man like Dr. Martin

" Luther King, who was not engaging in or suspected of engaging

-invéstigation of Martin Luther King, which was to determine

which today, from an ongoing operation is sensitive and

22

e meecan o Ve e

1739

in criminal activity?
. Mr, Adams. I know of no basis.
The Chairman. Why did the FBI do it?

Mr. Adams. Well, we have to apprcach two parts, in

my estimation, Senator Church. One, the basis for our

communist influence.on him,.my hands are tied in discussing

t+hat somevwhat on the basis that there is certain information

which, of course, we have made known to you and cartain
staff members. v -

I would like to say on thz basis that'frdmiour review
wa feel that we initially héd a bas%s for invastigating ﬁartin,
Luther Ring.

-Now as far as the activities which you ars asking about,
the discrediting, I know'of no'baéis for that and I will |
not attempt to justify it.

Tﬂefchairman.. You naver made a finding, d4did you, ;hat
Martin Luther Kiné Qas a communist? |

Mr. Adams. ©No, sir; we did noﬁti We ware in?éstigating
communist influencs ané the possibla effect on him, We )
never made such a Qetgrminétion.

The Chairman. Very well., Then therse was no justificatign
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for thé FBI +to interfers?

+ Mr, Adams. To discr=dit him.

i- {

The Chairman. In confefring an honorary degree upon
him. | '. -
Mr. Adams.. I cannot find any justification for that.
ihe'Chairmén. Is it true fﬁaﬁ the FBI on another occasicy
intervened in an atteﬁpt to pravent Dr. Martin iuther King
from seeing the Pope? |
Mr., Adams. I believe that is correct, sir. There ﬁere
approximately 25 incidents, I belisve, of actions taken in
this rsgard. I think Mr. Schwarz hég tho;a available, thaé

I would lump basically -all of them into the same situation N

of I see no statutory basis or no basis of justification for

the activity.‘

The Chairman. But what was the motive, there béing no
séatutory basis or othsar valid bgsis? What was the motive
for'attempting to prevent Dr. Martin iuther King .from visitiﬁg
witﬁ the Pope? o

”

Mr. Adams. In loéking at absblute‘motive, I don't think
the'ﬁileg'Which we have reviewed and made available to the "
Committ;a, give me a clesar picture of what.ths motive ﬁas.

I think that there‘wéie, the motive was certainly knéwp to

Mr. Hoover. It was,knowg to one fob official who is no longer

with the Bureau and mayb=s known to others, all of whom have

bgen interviewed by the Commities, Matters bsaring on what
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might have been the real motive or the possible motive, I

again fasl, bzcauses of reasons of privacy and delicacy, ars

not a proper subjact of diséussion at a public hearing.

. I think we know what could have. influenced thié, but
one, the primary individual, Mr. Hoover, is not with us.
Individuals who were closest to him in this effort.are notr
with us. And the Committaa‘itself has interviewed him.

So I really am not in a position to discuss this motive
issue. Sl - 0 |

The Chairman. Neverthgless, you would agrse that
whatever the mofive, it was a very improber thing.to d&;

Mr. Adaﬁs. I cannot fipd any justification, no, sir.

T~

NW 85360 Docld:32969543 Page 18
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The Chairman. Is it true that after Dr. Mgrtin Luther
King had been nominated for the Nobe; Peace Prize, that an
anonymous'letter was sent to Dr. ﬁartin Luther Kigg and to
Mrs. King, Coretta King, his wife, which was sent 34 days before
he was to ;gce%ye the Nobel Peace Prize?

Mr. Adams. I do not think those dates are correct.

The'Chairman. Well, it was,seng -

Mr. Adams. It was before he was to receive it. I think
34 days -- upon reconstruction by one of the members of my
staff, 34 days would havenpgen Christmas Day, and whethér that
34 days -- -

The*chairmag. It is hard to believe. that such a letter
would be written on Christmas Day.

Mr. Adams. It was ﬁot.writtén on.Christmas Day, but 34
d;ys —-- the Nbbel Peace Prize Ilthink,was on December 10,'£he

letter = 34 days. from the date.of the. mailing-of:the letter-

as has been reconstructed, as best as possibie, would have been

Christmas Day..

The Chairman. Was the letter written and sent by the

FBI?

Mr. Adams. We have no information. to that effect. All -
we know is that the draft, or original, of what may have been
the letter was found in papers:iof the FBI left after a former

official departed the FBI. We know that based upon - -inquiries

that we have conducted and you have conducted, we know that the

NV 65360 Docld:32983542 Page 19
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letter was not -- I mean it was in connection with other
material. So I think we can assume —-

The Chairman. Other matefials which were sent.

Mr. Adams._That's right. So ; can assume that the letter
was sent. I have determined nothing from my review of the
files, and neither has your staff, to my knowledge, or has been
reported back to me which would indicate that this action was
duly‘recoraed in any file or was a-—part of any authorized
program or anythiﬁg else. Thié is a void that I do-not think

any of us has been satisfactorily able. to resolve.

W

The Chairman. We know the  letter appeared in the files. W
know that the letter was received. We know it .was associated
with other matters thét weré sent by the FBI to Dr. Martin
Luther King. |

Mr. Adams. The letter was never in our files in thé sense
that it was entered into the official files of the FBI. -It was
among papers --

The Chairman. It Was among. papers.. . .

Mr. Adams.-;gft-by.an.indi&idual-who:had.deparfed.

The. Chairman.. . That individual being Mr. Sullivan?

Mr..Adams. Yes, sir.- i - : . ! o

The Chairman. The letter read, "King, there‘is only one
.thing left. for you to.do.‘You.know what it is. You have just
34 days in which té doi»iii'this:exagt:number haSﬁbeeﬁZSéLécted

for a specific reason. It has definite practical significance.
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You are done. There is but one way out for you."

Now, if you had received such a'ietter, how wouid you have
interpreted it? What would you have thoﬁght*it meant?

Mr. Adams. I have read that statement. I have heard the
conclusions 6fiyour staff that it was a suicide urging. I can't
find any basis upon which they drew that conclusion. I think
th;t, approaching it from an objective standpoint, as I read it,
I don't know.what-itimeans.

I think rather-than a conclusion it should be a speculation
ig a realm of .possibilities as to what was intended, but I
cannot -- I doﬁ't understand the basis for.it. ' It is a
possibility,but I certainlyA§ould not reach such a conclusion
from my.reading.of that.statement....

The Chairman...Now,nif.ybu had.received.a letter.of.this
kind.and.it.had.beeh directed to you, if you.were in Dr. King's
position and you read, "King, K there is'only one thing left
for you td do. ‘You.know.what:it'.is. You have just 34 days in
which to do it." Now, that happeneg.to.correqund to. the time
before which he was to receive the Nobel Peace Prize. What
would you think that .meant?.

.Mr.>Adams. I would have to consider what I was being
accused of. I would have to consider what the facts were. I
would have to consider what the intent of the person was writing

such a note, coming just before Christmas. I don't know if it

means, it is an urging to repent from something this person,

B e ———
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whoever he was, that had sent it, I have no idea what it meant.
The Chairman. It is certainly no Christmas card, is it?
Mr. Adams. It is certainly no Christmas card.
The Chairman. It reads, "You are done. There is but one
way out for you."
What does that mean?

Mr. Adams. I don't know. I don't know iﬁ it means

confession. I don't know if it means suicide, as has been raised.

I have no idea. You have the statement.:. I am not in a position
to say. I haven't interviewed anybne that was with him at the
time he ;eceived it.

The Chairman. Would you disown this.statement and say that
any connection the FBI Had with it was utterly improper and
grotesque?

Mr. Adams. I certainly would say it was improper, and I
can't justify its being prepared.or sent, yes, sir. -

Senator Mondale. .Mr. éhairman, if I might just interrupt.

The Chairman. Senator Mondale. T

Senator Mondale. What I asked yesterday of the staff was’
what Dr. King took it to mean. I have no khowledge ﬁf:&hatvthos
who framed this letter intended, and those who were with him at
the time he read it, inciuding Congressman Young who was one of
his assistants at the time, said that they took it to mean a

suggestion that he take his own life..

Mr. Adams. I am not in possession of that information. I
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1 jlam being put in a position, I don't know what the staff determined.

2 ||They did not repdrt back to me on their findings.

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

3 $he Chairman. The letter will speak for itself. You
4 |[personally have disowned it.

5 Mr. Adams. Absolutely.

6 The Chairman. As a highly impropgr thing for the FBI
7 ||[to be connected with in any way, do you agree with that?

8 |  Mr. Adams. Yes, sir, yes,_sir..

-9 : The Chairman. )ﬁow, without going through the many

10 ||different and specific undertakings that were intended to publicf
11 ly discre@it.Dr. King, because my time will not permit that and

12 || others will want to question.you on.other specific matters, I

13 || have just one further guestion to.put -to.:you..

WARD & PAUL

14 Yesterday there was a document of the FBI which suggested

15 || that in the opinion of the Bureau, .Dr. .King was an unsuitable

16 || Leader for the .civil.rights movement,ignd.that another maﬁ-

17 || should be looked for, and indeed, another candidate was actually
18 || suggested to Mr. Hoover as.one th should. be-promoted in

.19 || various ways so that he might assume'the leadership of this

20 movement- |

21 - Now, can you tell me of anything ih the‘iaw, or any other
29 justification, given the mission of the FBI, thét would entitle

oz || it to decide--who should lead political movements in this country

24 || or to undertake to degrade a man who had fought and won such

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 leadership and had the support of a great many black people in
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this country, and white peoplé as well, and to substitute in his
place someone of the FBI's selection or someone who stood in
the FBI's favor?

Can you think of any justification for such activity on

the part of a law enforcement agency?

Mr. Adams. I can't think of any offhand, no, sir.

The Chairman. Neither can I.

Senator Tower?

Senator Tower. -Thank you, Mr: Chairmans - =" i

What is your. understanding, if you have any understanding
of the underlying causes of the feud between Mr. Hoover and
Dr. King? . . -

Mr. Adams,' Senator Tower,'I feel if we got into any
discussion of that, I think we would haver to take into consider-
ation certain material which I feel.should.not be disclosed
publicly,\and I would respectfully ask that a questionidf motive
oﬁ Mr. Hoover.and the spat with Mr. King should be discussed
in executivé session,.if at all. -
Senator Tower. ..All right..

In'l965.Attorney.Generai'Katzenbach-waS'infofmed by Mr,

What was .the Attorney General's reaction? .What was his
position once he was .informed by  Mr..Hoover of- this surveillance?
Mr. Adams. I don't recall having seen it.

Senator Tower. In other words, did the Attorney General
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1 [fgive any direction to the Bureau in the matter that you know of?
2 Mr. Adams. Yes, sir. I know that, of course, on the

S ||wiretapping on Martin Luther King, it was approved by the

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 ||Attorney General. I know that the President of the United States
5 |lland the Attorney General specifically discussed their concern
6 llwith Dr. XKing over:Communist influence on him. I do know there

7 |lwas concern, but I don't tie in this date, 1965.

8 Senator Tower. Do you know whether or noﬁ‘Mr. Hoover

9 || ever sought direct’authorization from Mr. Katzenbach for this
_ 10 || vexry sensitive surveillance.of.Dr. King?

11 Mr.ﬁAdams. I don't know.. Attorney General Kennedy approvef

12 || the actual surveillance that was instituted on Dr. King. I

WARD & PAUL

13 || don't know of any correspondence between Attorney General
14 || Ratzenbach --
15 Senator Tower. Or any.personal communication between them

. .-16 || that would have indicated the level of the Attorney General's

17 || involvement?

18 Mr. Adams. No.

19 If my recollection.serves me.correct, as far as Attorney
. 20 || General Kennedy was,coﬂcerned,.he requested.coverage .on Dr.

21 || King. The Bureau .responded.with a request in writing, which

o9 [ is our normal procedure. He declined to apprové that request,

23 gnd then we came back.later, a few months later and requested

24 |l it again, at which time he did approve. That is my recollection

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 || of that.
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Senator Tower. Why did the Attorney General change his
mind? Do you have any_idea, or is'.that again a matter of
sensitivity?

Mr. Adams. I don't know why he actuaily changed his m;nd
from o;iginally requesting, then declining when it was submitted
and then approving it on the second go round.

It may be in the files. If it is, I would be glad to see
what I could determine.

Senator Tower. If you could, we would like to have that.

Mr. Adams. Yes, sir. )

Senator Tower. Mr. Adams, you have been familiar with the
Bureau's domestic intelligence work for many years. How did
the Bureau come to launch the COINTEL program and what in essence
did COINTELPRO accomplish?

Mr. Adams. Well, the program as such, as I can reconstruct
from the files, was.indicated as concern over conspirétorial

efforts of certain .groups, and a .decision made that perhaps

more affirmative.action.should. be.taken to neutralize violence

I belieéve these are some of the basic considerations that went
into the l;unching of the.COINTELPRO..

Now, as far as the first one, which wasjthe Communist
Party, of course, there was the concern here to neutralize the

effectiveness of the Communist Party in the United States. In

fact, out of all of the COINTELPRO operations that were approved,
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tion on the record as to the threat of the Communist Party in a

59 percent of them were directed at the Comm;nist Party. The
bulk of the concern initially was with the Communist ﬁarty and
it was a desire to create factionalism within the Communist
Party and try to neutralize its efforts.

The Cqmmunist Party, Congress itself, still has a determinar

statute. The Supreme Court has held that the Communist Party is
an instrument of the Soviet-Union. The Soviet Union cexrtainly
has not relinquished its interest in the United States as é
target. All of these.considerations.went into should we do
something not only tg.follow‘the.activities of the Communist
Party, but should we destroy its effectiveness in the United
States.

That was the first program, I believe, that.wés&initiated.

Senator Tower. Now, did the Bureau ever seek direction and
counsel from the A+torney General on any of its COINTE@PRO
efforts or specific programs?

Mr. Adams. As best as I can reconstfuc§3 Senator, there
was no direct authority. requested. from. any Attorney General for
the inétiation cf these programs,.and- .it is only a guestion, as
your staff presented yesterday, that the .Attorney Geperals,
Presidents, Congress, had beeﬁ made available of certain aspects
of programs after the fact and those were primarily concerned

with the Communist Party and, oh, one other organization but

not the New Left and these other types. So I cannot find any
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‘the staff has alluded to, letters reporting certain developmentsl

.like this, that it is just like the Smith Act of 1940, which is

1751

evidence, and I have no reason to believe that there would be
any evidence that the Bureau initiated these programs other than
aé an internal decision.

Senator Tower. Well, were reports on these programs made
to the Attorney General? Was he informed of them? Was he kept
informed on a continuing basis?

Mr. Adams. He was kept informed by lettexrs, which again

For instance, one of them that went to one Attorney General,
reading of that letter outlined almost in complete detail Klan
activities, activities taken to disrupt the Klan. It used
terms of neutralize, disrupt. There was a clear explanation of
what we were doing against the Klan in that regard.

Senator Tower. How is it that you came to believe that you
had the authority to neutralize or disrupt these organizations
rather than proceed against them frontally through pnoéecuting
them for law violations? |

Mr. Adams. I .guess you would have to say, in a position

designed to prevent revolutionary groups .from advocating the
overthrow of the Government, and .then subsequent .interpretations
as .to the constitutionality of.it.leaves,us.with.a statute

still .on the books .that proscribes .certain actioné; but yet the

degree of proof necessary to operate under the few remaining

areas is such that there was no satisfactory way to proceed,
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and it was an area where --

The Chairman. Will the Senatorryield at that point; please?

What’'you are saying, Mr. Wannall -- Mr. Adams, excuse
me, is that you did not opérate within‘the'law because the
law didn't give you sufficient latituder. Therefore you under-
took direct action to disrupt and otherwise undermine these
organizations.

Sénator ?gﬁer:_ Did you proceed on the assumption that
these organizations would eventually break the law,’and therefore
you sought to neutralize and disrupt. them before they did?

Mr. Adams. I can't say that, sir. I think that the investfi-
gatioﬁs of them were based on this belief, that they might
break the law or they were breaking the law. The disruptive
activities, I can't find where we were able to relate to that.
What it boils down to is what we have gotten into a gquestion
before on: in our review .of the situaéion:we.see men 6fvthe
FBI recognizing or having .a good faith belief that ghere was
immediate danger to the .United States .-- )

Senator Tower. All.right, but to. repair to Senator Church'ls
question, you don't say that you reaily had ;pecific legal
authority.

Mr.?Adams. No. And this is the hangup with the whole
program, and which we are not ?rying to justify, that there is

some statutory basis. I would not make that effort whatsoever.

All I'm trying to do is say that at the time it was initiated,
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‘country. They felt they had a fesponsibility to act and having

»tﬁe whole purpose .of this Committee, .the Attorney General,

20

Nt v

1753

we had men who felt--that:there was an immediate danger to the

felt this responsibility, did act. And lthis is the whole problem
we have~at :the-present-time, because we do have, one, we can
see good evidence of their belief there was a threat. We had
cities being burned, we had educational institutions being
bombed. We had deaths.occurring from all of these activities.
We had a situation that . we didn't know what the end was going
to be. We never can look around the cofner in intelligence
operations. We don't know if ultimately this might bring the
destruction of the country. All we know is we had an extremely
violent time. .So'I.don't find any basis in my mind to argue
with their‘good faith belief.they were faced with a danger.
Now, when they.move over to the second area of responsi-

bility, here is where we have the .problem, and I think it is

Mr. Kelley, all of us realizing we.can't gperate-ih:these areas
where-we.feel,responsibility.buthwe“dgn!tuhave a mandate by
Congress. So in that areaj this: feeling..of. responsibility
I.feel.came.from.the"factuthatvPresiaents, as .your staff said
vesterday,. PresidentsifCongressmen, thé Attarney General, no
one really provided direction and guidance o6r instructions
don't do this. Do this, don't do that, or what are you doing
and how are you doing it.

For instance, there is some feeling on the part of some
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'of the proliferation of. these.organizations, our.informant

20"

.hate groups, New Left groups.

1754

that our whole domestic intelligence operations were secret.

The COINTELPRO operation was. I mean, I think we all agreé that
this was, to be effective, they felt it should be secret. But
back in our -- this is printed appropriation testimony which |
went to the members of the Committee., It was mailed out to
newspapers, friends, anyone that was interested in it, back

in 1967-talking about Internal Security's operations, the New

Left movement, Young Socialist Alliance, Chicago trial, nationwide

demonstrations, student agitation, anti-war activitie;, the
Committee of Returned Volunfeers, Cpmmunist Party; . U.S.A. ",
Prodressive Party, Socialist Party, extremist oréanizations,
Black Panther Party. .All of these items and statements about
extremists, white extremists and hate type groups, £he Republic
of New Africa, Minutemén, our coverage of subversive organiza-
tions -- there are several groups, organizations and movements
which I discussed showed.the wide.coverage we must.maintain

to follow.on.their activities.and changing tactics, and in spite

coverage at.all.levels. has.been.of great.value and assistance,

enabling us to keep abreast of.our investigative responsibilities.

This is the same.way through all of.our public appropriation

testimony. We have:tdold:the world we are investigating black

So, I merely mention this to try to.put in the frame of

reference of these men feeling, they know we are investigating
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them. They didn't tell them, though,Hin sufficient detail other
than scantily before the Appropriations‘Committee what we were
doing to disrupt these activities, and my feeling is that the
men recognized the danger, they pointed out the danger to the
world. They said, we are investigating these organizations and
they felt then that the comfortable c;imate of leave it-up to
the FBI, we should do something more. And that is what we are
looking for guidelines on, the Attorney General, Mr. Kelley,
you, thatu:give.us the guidelines under which:iwe.shéuld.operate.
Q?iixNow, there are certain gu%delines that we don’t need to
be given, we shouldn't do this. We don't have such activities
today, programs designed to disrupt and neutralize in the
domestic intelligence field. But beyond that, we need guidelinep
on what does the whole of Congress, represenfative of the peoplej,
by passing of legislétion say thié is the FBI's role in
domestic infelligence., B

Senator Tower. Mr. Chairman, my time has long since
expired. o

I would like to note that I saw Mr. Kelley on the Todayr
Show this morning indicating strong support for a‘re;ponse to
Congressional oversight, and that is a healthy attitude.

The Chairman. Well, I think it must come because, as'’
you have really conceded, you shouldn’'t have ever had to have

had the -guidelines that the Federzl Government's chief law

enforcement agency ought not to discbey the law, and really, :.¥
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1 lyou don't 'need explicit guidelines to tell you that, or you
2 |{Ishouldn’'t have.

3 Wouldn't you agree?

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

4 -  Mr. Adams. I would say that looking at it today, we should

5 |lhave looked at it that way yesterday, but I do feel, I don't

6 ||lhave any doubt about the good faith of people recognizing the

n |ldanger, feeling they had a responsibility, no mattexr whosé fault

g8 ||it was, ours internally or befause we weren't given"ihezsuper-

9 ||vision we should have been given, and taking what they considered
10 ||to be appropriate action.

11 The Chairman. Senator Hart.

12 Senator Hart of Michigan. I should apologize both to

13 ||witnesses and my coileagues on the Committee for scrambling

WARD & PAUL

14 around loosely, but in explanation to the witnesses, I havé not
15 ||been able to give attention to the evolution of the £iles that
16 ||are now at hand until the last couplerof days, and I am not

17 ||sure what is in the files for the public record, and what of

18 || the materialé I have been shown.in the last couplé of days since

19 {|T got back are still under seal.. .So just out of mémory I am

.20' going to summarize certain activitieé which have been acknowledged
o7 | that the Bureau undertook, but without being specific withrreséect

. 8o |Ito location and names, and I do it for this reason. It is
o3 ||[right that the Committee and the press be worried about the

o4 treatment of a Nobel Prize winner, Dr. King. '

410 First Street, $.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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Nobel Prize whose names are Jones and Smith, that my review
of the files show had violence done to their First Amendment
rights. And Nobel Prize winners will always get protection,
but Joe Potatoes doesn't, and this Committee should focus on
him, too.

Now, included in this COINTEL were activities like thié,
anonymous letters, drafted by Bureau offices in the field, sent
to headquarters in Washington, approved, and then put~ in the
mail, intended to break up marriages,rnot of Dr. King but of
Mary and John Jones because oné or the other was thought to be
a dissenter, might have dressed strangely or showed up at
meetings.in company of others who dressed strangely; anonymous
letters to university officials and to the several newspapers
in that city to prevent university facilities from being madé
gvailable'to a speaker .of whom the Bureau disapproved, and it
wés not a;top‘flight,.big hame'speaker‘, In that case, an
anonymous letter was sent to me making protest. Being an
anonymous letter, it never occurred to me that it came from the
Federal Bureau of Investigation. .

"The series“of anonymous letﬁeré,,one with the spelling
very poor,_thergr;mmar sloppy, and another more sophisticatéd,
protesting the employment by a city of a man alleging that he
was a Communist or came from a Communist family, and there are
loyal Americans out of work, what are you doing, Mayor. And

to the press, isn't this an outragé. And again® the letter, the

NW 65360 Docld:32963543 Page 34
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anonymous letter sent to me saying what are you going to do about
this. There are loyal Democrats in this town who need work. And
in that case I happened to havé known the man about whom the
protest was made, and the Bureau's facts were wrong as hell on
that man's loyalty. He was a loyal as you or I.

Now, yes or no, are those actions.regarded now by the
Bureau as within bounds?

Mr. Adams. No, sir.

Senator Hart of Michigan. Why were-they regarded as within
bounds when they were approved by the Bureau??

Mr. Adams. Well, I think even under the guidélines of
COINTELPRO, as established, the programs were not designed for

the purpose of harrassment of an individual. The memoranda

.indicate’;they were designed to disrupt the organizations. Some

of the turn downs were turned down on this specific wordingf
This is mere harrassment. :

N The rationale would have been -- and of course, here, I
say some of these you mentioneé wouldn't even appear to me to
meet the criteria of the program and should have been disavowed,
even under the exiétence_of the program. However, in the total
cpntext of the program activities were to be directed towards
the organization itself, but we do not do that at the present
time.

. Senator Hart of Michigan. Yes, but everything I have

summarized, rather poorly, was approved by the Bureau at the
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timé by headquarters, not by the field office agents.

Mr. Adams. I do think that there were improper actions
taken under the program, even unde% the program as it existed.
Mr. Kelley has so stated his recognition of that fact. The
Attorney General certairily has. Yeé the majority of the actions

taken, even the Department concluded were lawful and legal,

“proper in&estigative activities, but the --

Senator Hart of Michigan. You see, my feeling is it isn't
a question of techniques that are béd. The concept of the
program see&s to do'violence to the First Amendment because
everything you did sought to silence someone or threaten
somebody to silence, or deny somebody a platform, or create aﬁ
atmosphere in which people were in fact afraid go assemble.

.Now, sometimes law enforcement, legitimate law enforcement
has what we call this chilling effect, when it is legitimate
law enforcement. Oftentimes that chilling effect is a necessary
though regretgble'siée effect. But‘wh;t I am talking abéut,
ard what these files are full of are actions the.only purpose
of which is to chill..It isn't in pursuit of any Ttrime at all.
Indeed, when a~ court of general jurisdiction approved the use
of thatuniversity premise .for the.use .of the speaker_thé.
Bureau had .stirred:..so .much.controversy with.its anonymous
letters,,when.that.judge,wrote.annoréer,.after.the sponsoring
group .went to .court, what.wés.the Bureau's reaction from

headquarters? Investigate the judge.
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Now, that, you kﬁow, if --

Mr., Adams, -.I'm not familiar with that fact.

Senator Hart of Michigan. Well, neiéher was I until last
night.

Mr. Adams. Th; instruction was to investigate the judge?

Senator Hart of Michigan. This is the kind of stuff that
I came out of the hospital to find, and it is the sort of thing,
as I said yesterday, that my children have been telling me for
years you were busy doing, and I simply didn't believe them.
And they were right and I am wrong.

Mr., Adams. Well, there were about 3200 activities, and
abdut 2300 I believe or .so .were approved under the COINTELPRO,
and over 59 peréent weré addressed .to .the Communist Party. That
leaves 1000. And out.of 1000, .perhaps, I don't know what the.

actual .figure was of .ones.that.just-.clearly stand out as-

improprietous under,thé.program,-even'as it.existed at the

.time, but I do feel.that --.well, it is.a.very.difficult area.

Senator.Hart of.Michigan.. My.time.is .up, too,.I am sure,

but on this business .of.the Communist .Party, .if .your theory -

.continues. to .be that .any.socially .active group of citizens

who organize, whether Women!s;libbers.or:fight the bomb or
anything else, might be a target .for infiltration by the
Communist Pérty and therefore you can move your agents in, that
means, almost .not as.an ovefstatement,that any and evéry citizen

activity could be made the target of the kind of businese that
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.I sumnarized so.briefly . here......
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I have just described, because every individual is apt, during

then you are justified in ?ﬁnniné tails on everybody.

Mr, Adams. Well, that was not --

Senator Hart .of Michigan. Everybody has got-that' privilegel
and that clearly is a police state concept.

Mr. Adams. That ié not our criteria.

Senator Hart of Michigan. All right, but if the criteria
is‘three or four of'us get together énd we have a sort of
nutty idea, just the kind of thing the Communists would like to
expioit, and therefore you seek to justify shutting off the
forum for that group or to sur?eille it, the pdtential for

Communist intrusion, then, if that continues to be your theory,

road that these files show you have been pursuing before. If
that is the predicate, the.fact.that a Soviet or Marxisf oxr
Maoist Hottentot .is .liable to .think there is .an idea .that we
can e%ploit,‘then you.pgobleware:goingwto“beuspending how many

man hours, -how .many .tax dollars doing the kind of things that

That in my book is .the 20th.century version of what the

Founding Fathers intended to prevent-when they wrote the First

ﬁmendment.
What is the-position of-the Bureau when- a.Communist .

may participate, associate with and promote  an idea, this
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justifies you trying to f;éureout'if you can bust up a marriage
if two of thé people .are in the group?’

4Mr: Ada@;. It “does-not, and it is not our criteria, no
sir.
Senator Hért'ofuMichigan. What doées it justify?

. Mr. Adams. It justifies our doing nothing in the way of

COINTELPRO activities. I still feel it has a justification,

. that you agree with,to investigate the Communist Party. It is

when you get into the disruptive areas where the program goes
beyond investigation that we have no statutory authority.

Senator Hart of Michigan. Well, we have been emphasiziné
COINTEL., Would it justify putting tails on the people?

Mri Adams. What, just a =--. . N

. .Senator Hart of Michigan. Or putting an informant into

the group.

Mr. Adams. If it is é Communist group?

Senator Hart of Michigan. No, .if it's .me and somebody
else that thinks we oughtn't to have.something that a majérity

of people think we should.  We organize .and .you.people say,

.well, there .is .something the Communists can take and run with.

Mr. Adams. No, sir.

Senator Hart of Michigan. Does-that justify putting a
tail on them? )

Mr. Adams. It does not, and we would not. Before we

would even open for a preliminary ingquiry, we should have an
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indicatién tha? the Communist Party has attempted to infiltrate
or is infiltrating, in other words, where you have some evidence
of a éubversive group, participating in the functions of that
orgaﬁizétibn;‘and there are gfey areas here, in the spectrum

of anythiné where I am sure we have opened investigations where
we should not because there has béen scant evidence of such

infiltration. And this is a supervisory problem. It is a

criteria problem. And it is also an oversight problem which
1

we are responding to.
| Senat;rAHart of Michigan. My time is up and I haven't gotten
into some of the other materigl.
The Chairman. Well, Senator, you have not been with us --
Senator Hart of Michigan. .No, no, I.just -=- B
HT?ey?@a%r?énl If you want more time, you hgve‘%ii;t of tim@
stored up. If you.want.to use it now, you.go right ahead.
Senator Hart .of Michigan. Well let me ask the justification
for this sort of business.
I have been talking about the things I have seen in the filles
that bear on direct, .First Amendment denial{.and again, @his
éoes not deal with the .treatment of a distinguished'Ameriqan.
Indeed, it involves groups:that are generally vVviewed with very
sharp disapproval. The .ground rulés éor the treafment should
be précisely the same, .whether it is a good guy, a popular

guy, or a dirty and émelly guy.

What was the purpese of the Bureau in trying to stir up
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strife -= perhaps I shouldn't say what was the purpocse -- what
possible justification for the Bureau trying fo sick the Black
Panthers on that outfit call the US out in California, or bétweer
the Black Panthers and the Blackstone Rangers in Chicago? Was
it with the hope that by fomenting it they would kill each other
off? T

Mr. Adams. Absolutely not, and I think the Committee
staff can inform you that during their review of all of these
matters they haven't come up with one instance of violence
resulting froﬁ any of these actions, and iﬁ that ".particular
case there was a communication in the same file which I believe
the staff had access to which showed that we did get information
that one of these groupé was going to put out a contract on one
of the, others, and we notified the poiice and the individuals

of the fact that their life was.in danger=s

-
-

None of .our programs have.contemplated violence, and

recommended actions.in some.instances specifically say that
we .do not approve.this.action because if we take it it could
result_.in. harm.to.the individual....... ..

So I think this is one.charge --.and the staff did nbt

make such a charge, I might add, when they presented the picturg --~

but I think any inference that we were trying to result in

violence is wrong. . o

Senator Hart of Michigan. Let-me explain for the recoxrd
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why I feached the conclusion I did..
Mr. Adams. The- wording of that meﬁorandum -
~_Senator Hart of Michigan.' And why I continue to hold to
that conclusion.

On~January 30th,‘l969, the Bureau headgquarters in Washingtoh
approved sending an anonymous letter to the leade; of the
Blackstone Ranéers, Jeff Forky, Which indicated that the Black
Panthers had put a contract out on hiS»life a; é result of
conflicts between the two organizations. Now, you say that was

I ask, wasn't the principal purpose of the letter to
encourage the Rangeré to shoot some or'all of the leadership
of the Panthe?s? OtherWiée, what @oes this quote mean, and I
will read it, It is from E memorandum from the  Chicago office
of the Bureau asking approval to undertake this. Here is the
way it reads: - "It isrbelieved thaﬁ the above" this anonymous:
tip that a contract.is.out.on you, WIt.is.bélieved that ‘the -
above may.intensify the degree .of animosity bet%eeﬁ the two
groups .and occasion.Forky to.take retaliatory actions which
could dis:uptnthevBPP, the Black .Panthers, or lead to
reprisalslagainst its .leadership. . Consider&tion has .been
given to'a similar letter to the. Panthers alleging a Ranger
plot against Panther leadership. Hqﬁever, it is not feltvthat
this will be productive, principally because the Panthers at

present is not believed as violence prone as the Rangers, ° °
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to 'whom violent .type activity, shooting and the like,.is second
nature." ST =

Now, how_cgn you reach -any conclusion other than a purpose
was to generate the kind of friction that would induce the
killing =-- N |

Mr. Adams. Well, if that purpose was for that rafher than
generating factidnalism, disagreements, disrupting it, it woul&r
be contrary to the communication I referred to in the other
file, the Black Panthers versus Ellis, where we ngtified the
police of the contracﬁ} we notifie@ the individuals of the
contract and took every action at our command to prevent

direct violence, and also the fact that the files showéd ‘that

we turned down these situations where violence was involved.
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'~ . gandator Hart of Michigan. Well, we have = differing

views with respect to motivss and the purpose of the Panther

- situation in,Chicago:"I'stiIi do not undarstand why the

Panthers gnd this US group in California we sought to bs set
as they were but finally, and again, I don't know whether it
is in the record, open or not, fqr what purpoée other than %o
occasion violsnce moved the Bursau to approve of,foréed

signatures of Communist Party parsonnsl to letters addrsssed

to Mafia-owned businssses -attacking the-employment ' practices

of the Mafia-owned business?
Why would a Buresau, why would the Bureau think there was
any valu= to be served in concocting a forgsad letter?

Let us assume Phil Hart is a local communist in this

- city. - The Bureau forges Phil Hart’s name to a rackét-owned

businesg, notorious for using muscle, protesting that fallow's
business practicss.

Now certainly it was not intsended to improve ths

employment practicss.

" Mr. Adams. I think if the full communication were
available, it did show a purposs unrelated to violence. I
don't  recall the exact wording now, but I think it was to

create a lack of support or'somathing like that.

This was part of that Hoodwink program, I belisve, that

"was on& of four actions that were involved in Hoodwink, and

I think thare have been some public desscriptions of that.
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program that indicats that it was not the greatsst thing
coming dOWn-Ehéﬂpike.n |
Senator Hart'of'Michigah.  Well, that is the sort of
thing quound that persuaded me to say very openly that I do
noé bﬁy the iéea that Ehé Americaﬁ people ultimately are

responsible for that kind of nonsense because I am cartain

‘thét viitually svery family in the country would have scresamed

in protsst no much how much they disliked Dr. King or tha

Panthers or the Communists. ”

- Mr. Adams. Sir ;;

'Segator Hart of Miqhigan. If they had known fhat tax
monsy and Federal personngl were busy, busy, busy ;round
the countfy, notwithstanding bank robbariss that were going
onlat'the same’ time, pounding ou{ thaé kind of corrsspondsncse
and incitiﬁq that kind of conflict and curbing spesech.
Thank you, Mp;‘Chairman.
The Chairman. Thank you vary much, Senatq# Hart.
Seznator Mondale is next.
‘Senator Mondale. Mr. Adams, I realize that you wer
not a part of this particular event, buﬁ being an old,
experianced FBI hand, I wonder if you could helé us understand
the psychology that 1ed to this kind of memorandum.

Mr. Adams. I feel it coming, but go ahzad.

7Séhétor Mondale. This is a memorandun to ths Dirsctor.

It has been referred +to befors, which calls for removing

]



B R N 7

Phone (Area 20%))544-6000

11

12

13

WARD & PAUL

14
15

16

lorf can help us understand the psYcholégy that led to it.

17

18

20
21
22
23

24

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25

- 1769

King from his pedestal and replacing him by someons else,

dated Janu&f&léih;ﬁi9éh; which memo was written a week

"following the timé that King was named man of the year by

Time magazine. :,.
This memo, as you know, raeceived the followiﬁg comment

from Mr. Hoover. b“iiam glaé to see that light, thougﬁ it

his.beén delaysd; haé come to.the Domestié Intelligehcé

Division," and so on.

I would just quote part of the language and maybe you

The first part .of the memo says: "Ws have got to remove

King from his pedestal."  .Then it says, "the negross will b =

left without a national leader of sﬁfficiently compslling

'personalityﬁ%p‘stégr it in-a propser direction. ~This is

what éould happen but neea not happen if the right kind of

national negro leader could at this time be gradually davelop=d

- 80 -as to overthrow Dr. King and bz in the position to assume

the role of leadership of thé'negro people when King has
been completsly discrediéed._'

 “For some months I have bsen thinking about ‘this matter.

Qne'day I had én cbportunity to explors this from-a phildsophical

and sociolégical'standpoint with X! -~ the name of the

leader =- "whom I have known for some years. As I previously

reportad, he is a very able fsllow and ong on whom I can

raely. I askad him to give the matter some attention, and if
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he knew énf gégrc of outsténding intelligence or ability, lst
me know and we would hgvg a discussian.

"He has submitted to mé;the name of the above-named
pérson,- Enclosed with this memorandum is an o#tlina of
X's biography, which is truly rsmarkable; In scanﬁing,this
biography, it,will be ‘seen that X does_have all of the
qualifications of the k;qd of a negroAI ﬁaVe in mind to
advance to ?ositgonsyéf national lsadership.” _ : -

And skipping: " MI want to make it clear at onca that

I don't p}opose that the FBI in any way -bescome involved

opénly as the sponsor of a negro leader to overshadow Martin
Luthe? King. If thisg thing can be set.up properly without
the Burgau in any way beéoming dirébtly invo}ved, I-thin#

it wbﬁlé'be’not only‘é great help to the FBI, but would be-
a fine t@ing for the country at large..

”Whiie;l’m not spéci%yiﬁg\at éhis momeﬁt, théré are.
variéus ways in which t@e'FBI could give this entire matter
the p:operﬂdirection and development. Thﬁrg %re~highly placed
contacts at thes FBI who it might ba ver? helpful to‘further

such a step. This can be discussed at a later date when

. I have probed mors fully into ths possibilities and this

recomnmendation is that approval bs given for me to sxplore
the whole matter as set forth above,® and to that Mr. ﬁbover
says, "I'm glad to see the light has finally come. -I have

struggled for months te gat over the fact that the communists
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were taking over the racial movements but our experts here

couldn't or wouldn't see it."
Now I think vou testified sarlier that you do not accsept

this as_proper FBI activity, but can you help us understand

" how at -one point in American history someons thought it was

proper, apparsntly including the Dirsctor?
<= Mr. Adams. I would have to say for ons thing thatrth;s

gets into the real motive of the discrediting of Martin Luther

King, which'I‘don*t'fégl can be fully explorad. I think that

the peopls most dirsectly involved in that are not available.

because I don't know from my experisncs what they had in

~

mind in this regard.

I hava no.doubt from this memorandum and other memorandum

- that the two individuals involved felt very strongly that
g

Martin Luthar.King was a threat to the success of tha negro
mQVSment and that steps should be'éakén tohgat himfout of
that -- what the reason for it»was'or the motivation, I am
Jjust not in a position to say.

I do say it is improper to injecf yoﬁrseif into tﬁat
typzs of activity,:but I don't know what the real motive was.

Senator Mondale. Now Df. Kiﬁg,wés.investigated, as I
think you &arlier testified, because éf_faars4of communist
influsnce upon him?

Mr, Adams, Yes.

‘Senator Mondals., Is that a propsr basis for investigating

1




. )
Phone (Area 2047 544-6000
o)
'__l

11

12

WARD & PAUL

14

15

16

17

18

Ll
o
o)

20
21
22
23

24

410 Flrst Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25

L NW 65360 Docld:32989543 Page 49

10 -

13

1772

Dr. King or anyone =lsa?

. Mr. Adams. It is where you have information indicating

that the Communisﬁ.Party_iS'aﬁd has made efforts to try

to inflgégce a# individual..
I wou;d say that that would normally bs considersd
within tﬁercﬁrrent criteria.
- Seﬁator Mondale. . You Wéula consider that to be a
valid purposé'forﬁinVestiéating today? -
Mr.:Adéms.-Excuse ﬁe, wha.t?~

Ssnator Mondale; You would consider thaé to be a

valid basis for investigating today?

-Mr.;Adamé; The mdvsment itself, but not ths individual.

Senator Mondale. How do you,investigate a movement

- without investigating individuals?

M;. Adams. You do get intp a gray area. Tﬁa main thing
wsuld be if we had an,organizaﬁion'today that we saw tﬁe .
Communist Party gravitatiﬁg to, trying to work in.posifibns
of leaaershiptiwa-would bg intérested;ih‘gpening an investigat

on Communist infiltration of that organization to sese if

-it was affacting it.

Senator Mondale. ALl right, an.let{é go back’
specifically; |
| I gather there naver was ény question raised aboué
whether Dr. King was‘a‘Communist. Thaﬁ-wé§ never charged.

Mr. Adams. Not as a Communist Party member, no, sir.

ion
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Senator Mondale. That's right. Or that he was about to

or had committed acts of violencse?.

LRy

.. .Mr. Adams. MNo.
Senator Mondale. But the reasoﬁ for investigating him
apparsntly was that he was subject to Communigt influence.
Now what makes that a justifiéd reason for investigating

him? Is it a crime to bs approachsd by someonse who is a
y .

Communist? <=

Mr. Adams. No.”

Senator Mondale. What is the legal basis for that
investigation?
Mr. Adams. The basis would be the Communist influence

on him and the effect it would have on the organization. It

would be in connection with our basic invsstigation of the -
, gati

. Communist Party.

Senator Mondals. Well;'as I understand the law to
read,'it-is nét é crimg to-be-é mamber of g.Cémmunist‘Pafty;
Mr. Adams. 'That is correct. |
Senatér'Monaale; How can.if be a crime to know someons
who is a mémpef-of'th31Communist Party?
Mr. Adams.,. It'is not.. i - e
Senator Mondale. How do youninvéstigaté something as
‘tenuous as that? What is the basis for it lagally?
- Mr. Adams. Well, it falls into the areanof, ons, thg

intelligence jurisdiction of the activities of the Communist
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Party to have a situation where an individual in an organizationd,

a leader of an organization, efforts are being made to

and it is part of the overall investigation of the Party
trying to exert this influsnce as to are thsy succassful,

are they taking ovar the black movement or the civil rights

It is just like we tried to make clear in investigations
that wére:morerpfevalahé yaars ag6 but still occur on the
Cémmunist”influence.iﬁ labor unions. We tried to tell sVery-
body we inéefview we are not interested in labor matters. We
are not trying'to inquire'iﬁto thét. We are intersested in
the effect of the Communist Party on this union. |

Senator Mondale. Mr. Adams, I an tfying to get aé the
legal basis in this parﬁicu}ar case in investigaéing Dr.
kiﬁg on the-grounds.that he might_ﬁe subjéct to Commuhist
influence. |

'bCapdyGu cite an?'legal.basis fqr that or is it bassed

entirsly upon a gznsralized authority thought to exist in

Mr. Adams, itjwould.fall als§ in the Presidéntial
directivas of investigating subversive activities.

Sznator Mondalse. And than ths question would rétﬁrﬁ'
to what authority the President had.

Myr. Adams. That's right.
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Senator Mondale., Now Dr., King was investigated among

other things for matters of, I think you call it delicacy.

Would that be a basls for investigating an American
citizén_by'thg FBI?

Mr. Adams. No. -

Senator Mondale. Would you say then that those
investigations were improper? |

Mr..Adams. -I don't believe that thers is an allegafion
that we investigated him for that. .I think'there ware
certain by;products_pf information that devalopad and Irthink
at a point you had-a siﬁuation whare the tail was wagging |
the dog, perhaps, but I don't sea any basis fof such investi-
gation. Aﬁa I find it very difficult to get into a discussion
of thig‘infﬁigw of the prohibitions that I think =-

Senator Mondale. You answered my gueéstion. That for

" Mr. Adams. ‘No; sir.

Senator Mondgle. .Wéﬁid~you agree with me, Mr. Adams,
fhat this wﬁo;e-vague,‘generalized aréé of the assignmegt
thét éhg FBI has ﬁeen_taskedg,whicﬁ théy thought fhey possessed].
or could use to investigata Americans; not where there were. |
allegéiionsvof crime or‘suspicion_that crimes were about to
be committed, or éhat Qiélence-was about to bs cqmmitted,
but rather this ﬁho;e,generalized arsa, to in&estigate

Americans in terms of ideas that they have or might be persuaded
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to have that.might hold poteﬂtial for danger to this country
is an exceedingly vagué, difficult,rif rnot impossible to
defipe area and an area which has got the FBI into an awful
ldt of trouﬁls, including today's ﬁearings.

Mr. Adams. Yes, sir.

Senator Mondala. And because of that there is a vefy
irportant need fo.siﬁ down and redefine it, have the guidelines
known specifically by all so that the FBI can.know prgcisely
what it can dﬁ and what it cannot do.r

Mr. Adams. I think this is why théncountry ié'fortunate
in this particular time. to h&ve an Attorney Geﬁeral who is.
a legél scholar and a lawyer of unquestioﬁed repﬁte who
has indicated a&willingness to dédréss these pfoblems; wﬁich
as the staff has.determiﬁgd, was not always tha'case.over |
the ysars. Buﬁ'we have_an Attorney ngeral, we‘havé é
Dirég@or,-wﬁo has offérea his comblete conﬁeration; juét_as
heé has to the Committes in this inquiff, that Qé.a:e not
ﬁrying'to:avoid embar;assment‘ -The only thing Qe_are trying

to hold back are identities of informants and Sansitivé,

' .ongoing operations that we have, a concern on the part of

Congreéé that not only recognizes. there have been abuses,
bu; recognizes that there still a;&ays has to be scme degree
of flexibility. |

o We are going to‘have sitpations wheré yvou have a

Weatherman working for the water works, and in college hs was .
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a scientific studsnt, and he makes a comment to a fellow

employee[that there is going to be some spactacular evant

. that is' going to bring the.attention of the world on this

‘eity.

Senator Mondals. Wouldn't you have probablsz cause then

to investigate thes commission of a erime?

P - -

[T PAp S
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- Mr. Adams. We might have to investigate, but to disrupt,
we have the authority. to tell the supervisor of the waterworks,
you had better get him -out of there before the city water is
poisoned and 100,000 people die, and I think the Committee is
going to find the same problems we do in coping with tﬂat
situation, and even the Attorney General in his speech in Ottawa

pointed out that there is still possibly a necessity for some

- flexibility to take appropriate action under extreme conditions.

But it should be controlled. It is like Mr. Kelley says, go

.to the Attorney General, explore the legal issues, lay the

problem up there: It should’not be handled internally in the
FBI, ‘ |

Senator Mondale. But do you also agree"thét the Congnéss
ougﬁt to redefine'the rules législatively?

Mr. Adams. Yes, because the problem -I have'with‘it_is
we talk about ovefsight,:and Mr. Kelley and the AttofpeyrGéqerallx
and I believe th%s Coﬁmiftee.agree”that we~shoﬁld havé‘joiﬁﬁl |
oversight which would avoid;theméroliferation of.hearings
and the sensitive knowledge.améng~mény people which always
poses that inadvértentAleak.of.information. But .yet eﬁen with
oversight, under the plan.you‘discussed.yesterday, or some of
the observations that &ere discusgd vesterday, having people,
conservative,. liberal, black, and the other qualifications yoﬁ
put in, can a Committee speak for the will of Congress? At

one time we had Congressmen making speeches all over the .

“NW 65360 Docld:32989543 Page 55
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country, if we don't stop these bombings, 1f somebody doesn't
will of Congress? e

Until it is embodied in legislation where the whole will
of Congress is expressed, we are going to have problems.

Senator Mondale. I am glad to hear that, because there is

a way Congress ‘speaks. It is not through the buddy system or

Mr. Adams. That's right.

Senator Mondale. And now we have for the first time this
whole issue, it~is not denied by the FBI. The elements are
known. What I hegi you .saying is you wouid like the Congress
now to define and redefine specifically and carefully what it‘~
is we expect the FBI to do, and what it is we wish the FBI and
will prohibit the FBI from doing. |

Mr. Adams. Right. What is.our .role in society?

After World War II, if you'll .remember, a Congress;onal

there was not enough. .in..the way of intelliqgnceuinvestigations.
Never again .should .it. happen in the ﬁnited States that we be
caught with our.pants.dowﬁ._.

After the Kennedy assassination, if you recall, the FBI
was properly criticized for having too restrictive dissemination
policies in connection with Secret Service because they depend

spon us for the intelligence necessary to provide protection.
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for the President against. extremist. groups.. We did.that but

just before ‘the recent incidents in California there was going

to be Committee concern, not this Committee, over has there..

been too much dissemination.

So the FBI is in the position of at different times in our
history being damned for’doing toc much and damned for doing
tqp little. And it is‘because of reacting to what we try to
judge is what they want us to do, and this is what we are not
in a position to do. We need the will of Congress expressed in

some definitive measure, yet providing the latitude, because as

from these problems, there are many that there is

you have seen
no black and white answer to. There have to be occasions

where when you are confronted with an.extreme emergency, someone

can act, and I don't think you or anyone else wants to tie the

-

hands of law enforcement when today we have over 10-million

<

serious crimes .in .the .United.States.. Wei have .l.million c¢rimes
a year involving violence, and there has to .be a capability to
react. .But we need.to know in better terms what is our role

in this, especially .in domestic intelligence.

Senator Mondale. .Thank you, ﬁr. Chairman.

Senator Tower (presiding) . Senator .Schweiker.

Senator Schweiker. Thank yoﬁy Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Adams, in 1966 a letter written by the Bureau tol
Marvin Watson, Special Assistant to the Presideﬁt at fhe White

House, and the gist of this letter was, in refereﬁce to his
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request, and I want to make it.clear it was his request, not
_thenéggeéfjs, a?thors of-books that were critical of the Warren
Commission Report, the assassination of President Kennedy, were
’requested to file any pertinent personal data information,
dossieré; etc., oﬁ seven individuals whose names I will not

discuss. i
] --Dé you have any knowledge as to &hy the White Houée request

this kind of material on the Warren Commission critics?

Mr, Adams. I don't recall. I am familiar with the materidg
I did review it --some time ago when we were testifying before
the House Committee in February, but I don't recall that i saw
in there any specific motivation on the part of the White House
group requesting this information.

Senator Schweiker. Now( in the same lette; it also says
a copy ofﬂthis communication has not been sent tc the Acting

Attorney General.

'~ Mr. Adams. Yes. o | A
Senator:Schwéiker. Number one, is tha? a normal procedure
when you get reqﬁests of,th;s kind that th?_Acting Attornev
General is bypassed, and why was the Attorney General bypassed
in this insFance? | |
Mr. Adams. This is not a normal procedure. It is not
the ptécédure followed today. There'was a period of time where,

-at the President's directicns, Mr. Hoover reported more

directly to him in certain areas, and it was' apparently a
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feeling that he did not want the Adstorney General to know certain

Senator Schweiker. One of the dossiers specifically in-
cludéd photographs of sexual activities.

Mr. Adams. Yes, .sir.

Senator Schwéiker. And my questi&n is, how is that relevant
to.being a c?itic of the Warren Commission?

What standard do we use .when we just pass photographs of
sexual activities to the White House? 1Is this a normal -- again
is this a normal proceeding when a dossier is requested? Is thik
included, oé did they specifically request photographs of this
kind, or what light can you shed on this?

Mr. Adams. I can't shed much. - I know they requested
information on him. I think there was other material concerning
that individual of a security nature that was included. Why
the information in that respect was submitted I am unable to
answer., : - .-

I do know at the time there was a lot.of concern following
the Warren Commission Report; had all tﬁe answers been explored,

was the Soviet Union involved, was Cuba involwved, ‘and who were

~ .

the critics who now are attacking this. But I hé@é seen
nothing which would explain the rationale for requesting the
material.

‘Senator Schweiker. I think what concerns us on the Committjee -

is that-&henever'yoﬁ get to the nitty gritty of investigatiodns,
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and it doesn't have to relate to the Warren Commission, I will

recording or some letter referring to some kind of human weaknesks
or failing that is really very irrelevant to the investigation
is sandwiched in here,iand it just séems to me that it was a
tactic -- this just happens to be the Warren Commissioﬁ T

singled out -~ but it was é tactic that was used rather
frequently as a’leyer-orrfor some reason which I am trying to
find out as an instrument of investigative.policy;

Would foq differwwith that or dispute that, or again,
what rationale? Do wé use sexual activities as a standard
criterion for investigations? _

Mr: Ad;ms. We do not use sexual activitieé_as a criterion,‘
but during tﬁe course of our_investigation -— we did‘haye an
investigation on that individual at one time -- and during
the éourse.of thejnfestigation, in,checkiqé the recordé.of a

local police department or. a district. attorney's office, they

had conducted an investigation for a. criminal act involving thege

photographs, and. they made that available to us.

.80 it went into our files.

Now, £he request of the Presidéﬁ£, ﬁe is the Chief
Executive of the United Statés. .He in effect has custodf of
everything. There are problgms'involved-When the man who is

in charge of everything requests information. I would like
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that I don't know of any . such requests coming over to the FBI

~or feel I should, but we do not have this line of communication

to add, however, that following the cleansing effect of Watergats

anymore.

There is a direct line between the Attorney General and

the Director, and the Director certainly recognizes that in a

case of extreme disagreement he would have the alternative to

tell the Attorney General, I need t6 go directly to the President,

at the.present time.- -

Senator Schweiker. Well, it .seems to me if they had just
lisEed thémothgr.énvgstigation and listed what was alleged

in the other investigation, that certainly would have sufficed
for whatever purpose it-would have;__But it seemsito me when .
you in fact gnclose living photographs, you are really- getting
very much, to my way of thinking, towards attempting tbr
discredi; théir critics. What other purpose. would a,photograph
have of this nature.othgr than to discredit critips because
they wili not quarrel with listing whatever Qas charged in

another state. That may well have been included. I cannot

argue that.

Mr. Adams. I can’t answer that.

Senator Schweiker. One area tﬁat I think this gets to
which we really touched on in the assassination probe quite a
bit, Mr. Adams, is where the Bureau stops when they get some

of these requests, in other words, what kind of criteria, if

W
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any. You touched onrit a moment ago. The Presidgnt asked for
‘gom§§§%pql‘ I don't know in this case whether the President
asked to see photographs of this nature or didn't ask, but the
point is, nobody said no and he got them.

Sonthe quesgion is, where do you see the Bureau's responsi-
bility here, and what can this Committee do to ensure that
there is some kind of a test that we either put in the law
or t@at yhe FBI ipyokes,tor that we invoke on the White House
in using police power in this way?

Mr. Adams., I dog't think Congress can ever f£ill the
responsibility of trying-to-draw up guidelines, even in conjunc-
tion with the Executive Branch, to guarantee that all ébuses
won't ﬁake place. The orgahization is made up of human beings,

and these things occur.

Certain corrective actions are self-initiated, such as

this. The President, for instance, you.know we had an incident
a few years ago about investigating.a newsman, whg?e we ‘were
reqﬁested, and if I recall from our.information,’we thought he
was being considefed for an appointed pbsi@}on‘whiéh would have
been a logical basis. As_facts turned out, that--was not the
purpose tﬁat the information was requested.

To stem or stop abuses like that, the President, the
current Admiﬁistration has issued instructions that any requests

for investigations under the special inquiry or White House

investigation such as for appointment must clear through the

NW 65360 Docld:32983543 Page &2
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office of his counsel, in other words, not let the lower line
people_come over and say we need this information or we need
this request. They come through the office of Phil Buchen
through an employee tﬂat is assigned to that office with
responsibilitf. T

Now, we do still make certain name check:requests for the
WQite-House, and those, too, have to élear through his office.
So we do have that. Then we have the responsibility, if we
get something which on its face appears political’or improper,
then our responsibility under that would be to go to the
Attorney- General and ask-himfto~intercede by finding out is
this a proper request on the Bureau. aAnd I caﬁ assure you that
as Mr. Kelley has testified and haébmade it perfectly clear
that he has not had any such improper requests and he would
go right to the Attorney General if it was necessary. Otﬁerwise
he would reject the request.

Senator Schweiker. What steps are we taking, under\your
jurisdiction comes whatever internal investigation .unit tﬁe
EBI has. 7I.just woﬂdered very briefly, beqause.I know my
time is-very limited, we have.a vote on, what steps are you
taking to .make sure that we catch some of these things in-the
present that maybe we either overlooked or did not catch or
somehow got sidetracked in the past?‘

Mr, Adams. We have been working with the Attorney General

and his staff. It started even when Attorney General Saxbe

MW 65360 Docld:32989543 Page &3




o pmracss e o] m o a4 me

mn 10

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000¢,;

10

12

WARD & PAUL.

.13
14

15

.16

17

18

20
21
22
23

24

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25

MUY 65360 Docld:32989543 Page 64

|- investigative operations: are they proper, do they fit

11

1787

was there, to look aﬁ aii of our procedures, all of our

criteria, do we have a‘Legal‘Sasis for them, and we have guide-
lines, committees which have been ést;blished in the Department
that meet every day on .questions of what isheven an overwhelming
problem of collection and maintenance of information. What
do we-geﬁ, why do we get it, what should we do with it.

- I feel there is a very active program going on in that

regard, and I feel certain that it will continue to make sure

that we are aware of everythiﬁg aﬁd-takerappropriate action.

these with.thé staff so that we can have an adﬁantage of taking
a look at those, too. I am glad to see this being made.

Mr. Adams. I would have to secure-the approval of the
Attorney General on the guidelines. He did tell the House
Cémmittee which originally raised the question on maintenance of
information, that once we get something and they are nearing
completion in tﬁe Department, that he does intend to téke it
up with Congress. So I am sure there would be no problem at
that point .in bringing it to this Committee .as well.

Senator .Schweiker. Because.it.seems to me this is where
the problems in the past have arisen, in not having clearly
defined of maybe if you measure it -- you can measure it in
terms of today's standards versus standards of before, but I

" think this is the crux of it.
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. g 2 __Senator Schwéiker. That's all I have, Mr. Chairman.
g ) , Senator Tower. Mr. Adams, what use does the Bureau presently

4 || make of its intelligence informants, and have they ever been

o 5 used as provocateurs or as magnets for action?

6 Mr. Adams. No, sir.

?‘ _ Well, you asked two questions.

8 Senator Tower. Yes. ’ -

9 Mr. Adams. Let me take :the last one first, provocateurs.

10 || Our policy has not -- or our policy ‘has been to .discourage any
==~ 13 || activities-which in anyway might involve an informant doing

12 || something that - an agent cannot do, which would be in the area

WARD & PAUL

13 || of beingfa provocateur,iwhich basically is entrapment. And
714 we have had some allegations of entrapment come up. We feel
15 || we have*;atisfactorily answered them. This is a véry technical
16 | legal field which boils down, of course, to the fact that if a
1. | person is willing to do something, and the government merely
18 || provides the opportunity, that is not legally entrapment. So
.- 19 || if a person comes,té_us;and says .I havg been asked to participatke
20 || in a breakin of a Federal building, i would like to help you,
51 || then the law basically would indicate we have the éuthority
2é to continue to let him operate.
23 The question comes up if he aséumes the whole direction

24 || and causes people to do something which they would not otherwise

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25 || have done. That is the entrapment issue. So we are very alert
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to this. We have insﬁiﬁctions,-clear guidelines, instructions
to our field offices that they are not to use an informant for
anything that an agent'cannotrlegally do. I don't say there
haven't been some mistakes in that‘rééard, but I don't know of
any at the present time. B
'Sehator Tower.“ Senator Huddleston?
- Senator Huddleston. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

_First I think to keep this activity in proper perspective
it might be well to iemémber that even though a great deal of
the testimony and the. questioning has been relating to the
question of Dr. King, that this is by no means an isolated
situation. Dr. King's case is indeed a classic example utilizir

all of the various techniques of the Bureau. in both intelligence

gathering an action against an individual in order to dis- -

- credit him or embarrass him, or indeed destroy him.

But the record is replete, and indeed, here\is an entire
sheaf of similar targets who are certainly not as well known.
Some of them are high school students, some of them are

high school teachers, college students, college teachers,

. broadcasters and joﬁrnalists, people whose names would be almost

totally.unfamiliar. to. the. vast. majority. of. Americans, So the.

" activity was not.confined.to those.that are immediately

recognizable who were indeed public.figures.
I want to just proceed along the question of informants

that Senator Tower just raised for just a moment or two.

g9
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You say that your informants are not expected to do anything
that an agent himself could not do, gut in the gathering of the
infofﬁétggh for—which you argdsecuring him in the first place,
do you have any safegquard at all, 6r any rule as to how he
proceeds in order to gather the information you are looking
for? | )

‘:Mr.“Adams. Only that he proceed through legal means.

Senator Huddleston. Is that specifically stated to him

when he is employed? . -

Mr. Adams. Yes, sir.

‘Senator Huddlesténﬂ_ugyg;most>informers paid on the
baézs of ;”reéﬁ&é; fé; or regular salary,ror are they paid
on the basis of the information they gather?

Mf. Adams. Even those who are paid on what you could say
a salary, that salary is dete;mined on a COD basis as to the
value 6f>the information furnished.. In othér words, in the
criminal case, for instance, you coﬁld have a pe;son come-in and

give you the identity of.three individuals who just robbed a

bank. You ﬁight pay him a lump sum amount, and never go back

to him.

In the security field where informants do finally manage
to work into a revdiutiéﬁary type oréanization, their
continued activities in our behalf do set.up more of a program

for payment.

Senator Huddleston. Do you check on occasion on the basis
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of information that may-be supplied to you if it happens to be

of a sensational nature or of a surprising nature, do you ever

question the informer on how he obtained it?

Mr. Adams. I am sure this takes place. In any handling

of an informant over a sustained period of time, you do have a

rapport which they don't just come in and say Joe Blow said

this, Joe Blow did that. There is a conversation that goes

- through which I feel certain would, if something looked like,

if it looked like he had something that came from some improper

source, I think the agent would say-where 4did you get this.

[ - - R —_ - -
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- Senator Huddleétdﬁ. If you found it had bseen taken

it be.put in the files? - o
©  Mr. Adams.  If he violated the law, we would have an

open investigation if it were within our jurisdidation.

Senator Huddleston.  Now the Bureau disseminates this
information on individuals that is collected in various
'ways'iﬁ‘the:variops_other agancies. o 2

How many othef aéenéies'can request, for igstancé, aﬂ
individual check that would result in youf supplying to him

My . Adams. Every agent in the Fedsral Goverunment undex
the amployee securiity program there is an obligation on the
part of svery government agency to check with the FBI doing
name check search of our files to see if there is any subvarsivs
derrogatory iﬁfqrmation which might'militate against appointin
that individual to a Federal position.

M éenator Huddleston. Do .you take any prescautions as to
how thef will uss tﬁat inﬁormation once i£~is‘supplied to
them by your agents?. - -

: . ‘ N
Mr., Adams. All we do is iﬁdicate‘to tham on tﬁé
réport that it is the pro?er?y of +the EBI and is not to be
disseminated outside their agancy.

Senator Huddleston. You. have no way of knowing whether

or rot indeed .it 1s?
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Mr. Adams. No, sir, we do not.

- Sehator Huddleston. What internal precautions do you

have against the Bureau itself misusing information that it

gains from other agencies?

Mr., Adams. Strong prohibitions. Oneg, we don'i allow

access to filas except on a need-to-know basis. Any employee

of the FBI knows that if he improperly divulges information

or leaks information out of the filas, he will be subject
+o administrative action.

We had a cass where an agent obtained an idsntification

_——— - ——— e e -

and I think that agznt

was separated from the roles. But we had asked for, and of

v

course we share in CIA's requaest to this extent, is that thers
be a criminal penalty attached to misuse of information and
leaking it or making it available outside of an agency. .

. ~This is another issues befores Congress.

JFK Law 11 (a)

Did this in fact happsn to your knowledgg?

Mr. Adams. I am not familiar with that case. I can
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easily say it would not bs proper.
Seﬁator Hﬁddleston{ But you don't know whethsr: it

happened or whether the act.was carrisd out?

Mr. .Adams. I do not know.

Sznator Huddleston. Mr, Adams, getting on to another

subject, ons of the techniquss used véry frequently by the

Bureau in its attempt tc discredit individuals was to

utilize the press. It was customary to send anonymous letters

on many occasions to editors, broadcasters, commentétors and
qoiumnists around thefcountry,conééining-informatiqn or
suggeségnémknforﬁétion~gggg{“énfin&ividual that thes Bursau
wanted to discredit in soms -way.

Thers was also some évidence ‘that the Bureau utilizsad
within tha‘preés itself on a reéular contact basis csxtain-
~columni§ts ofwbroadcasters for the purpose of aisseminating
informatiog»that the FBI_wanted to gst out about individuals.

How e&xtensive was this custom utilized?

Mr. Adémé. - I don't balieve it Qas vary extensiva.

In fact, I think thare were probably very faw incidents Wwhere

- untrue information was put. out.

-~

That is my recoll&étion.

On disseminating public sourge'iﬁformation tﬁera ware
a.number of instances of that whiph\is-stiil'prgper toc date
under guidelines. I just don’'t know of many instances' where

untrue information was used, and I do rot know of too many
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instances overall where that was donsz.

" Ssnator Huddleston, - Do you know of any instances or

how many actual journalists or practitionzrs or regqularxr

disseminators of FBI information?

Mr. Adams. I don't know of any today that are in that

ragard. I know thare have been situations where, and pesoplse

still do. They come to us and say, we would like to do an

article on organizsd crime. Can you be of assistanca?

And 1f we can be of assistance within the guidslines

established by the Attorney General, we do assist. We have

a pull and & tu§ over privacy acts and fresdom of information

and also the need to know, but we try to satisfy.

Senator Huddleston. Do you know of any at the present

time or in the past who have been paid by the FBI for their

services? - . C ’ ' .
Mr. Adéms; _Ncﬁ‘personally. I don't know of any.
Senator Hu&&lgstoh. Not persoﬁally. Dolyou know of

any evidence that indi;atas thét?

Mr. idams; That's what I mean. I don't héve any
evidence that indicates tiat.

Senator Hua&iéston. I think it would be.ﬁelpful to our
inquiry if wefcouldrreview or you would‘review the files aﬂd‘
make a determination as to whather or not that might be the
case, that the FBI ha§ paid jOBrnalistsyth are amenabls to

disseminating informatioﬁ éupplied by the FBI.
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Mr. Adams., I am to}d We,h%ve. I don't know what files
we have reaviewsed, but we have reviewed them and we havan't
found any.

Senator Huddleston. Yoh’haven'tﬂéound any.

Whg} is the mass media program of the FBI?

Mr., Adams. To.try to get the truth out, to get a proper
picture of the FBI's jurisdiction, its activities. |

Senator Huddleston. Is it also to suppress other
publications or other commentators or journalists who might
be disseminating other views?

Mr. Adams. No. |

Senator Huddleston. . .Did the FBI not take some action
against a number of newspapers, most of them student newspapers
that they felt should be supprassed?

Mr. Adams., We may have in the past. I don't recall
any specific case.

You are talking about some of the Weatherman support
papers qi Black Panther paper. I don't know of any in that
regard, but I'm not saying tkhat such action was not taken.

Senator Huddleston. Are you familiar with the special
correspondence list? - |

Mr., Adams. Yes.

Senator Hu&dlﬁstonf What isrthis list?

Mr, Adams. My recollection is that the special

correspondence list was a,list of individuals that had requssted
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from time to time various Bureau publications and were kept
on a continuigg list.and mailead such“communications to them.

Sanato? Huddlaston. It Qas a list that was cénsidered
to be friendly t§§ards the FBI wisw? .

Mr., Adams.. Yes. I wggid say anyone on that list would
normally be friéﬁdly.

Senator deéleston. Dd you have knowledge of a number
of instances iﬁ which the Bureau carrying out‘its COINTEL
program utilized the existiné press in o;ée; to attempt to
discredit some individual? |

Mr. Adams. I don't have an idea of the number, but I
don't think.there were very many;

Senator Hudalegtoﬁ. Do you have a list of tﬂe.instances
in which the Bureau‘attempted to discredit other publications?

Mr. Adams. No, I do#'t know.

Senator Huddlsston. Do you know that they did occur?

Mr. Adams. I can ask. I get a no as far as any khowledge
in that rsgard.

Senator Huddleston. As far as knéwledge.

Mr. Adams. That means knowledge of what we have coma
up with in our cﬁrrant review, I would assume.

Senatoé Huddleston. It seems to me that this is aﬁ

arga in é;ich,we are particularly troubled and should be. If

there is any right that is speéifically called for in our

Constitution and has been upheld and resaffirmed in court decisioc}
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aftar court decision, it is the right to publish in this
country. Thg First Amendﬁent sp=aks not onl& of freedom of
we have a pattern here of the chief Lgﬁlenforéement ageﬁcy
of the country attémpting to suppress that very right.

Mr. Adams. I havenft seen.-- I'khiqk any effort to
manipulate the press of this éountry, I just don't sze any
possibility in that regard and I don't see the logic of
anyons eveﬂ attempﬁing such. |

senator Huddleston. But it dié happen.

Mr. Adams. It may have happened in --

Senator Huddleston. In a rather extensive field. .

Mr, Adams. I disagres wiéh that rathgr extensive field,.
I just don't know the extent that you .are talkiAg to he;é.

Senator Huddleston. .We are talking'about the cases where

" Mr. Adams. Are you lumping in cases whers we disseminated
public source information? Are you lﬁmping.in a case where
we may ha&e gone to a -~

Senator Huddléston. I think disseﬁinating public sourcs
information is somewhat different from furnishing a TV
commentator with derrogatory information about a specifié’
individual who has been targetsd as one that apparently the
Bureau thinks is dangerous or his ideas ought to be suppressed.

N . .
Mr. Adams. Is that manipulating the press, though?

Here you have a situation where an individual is going around

——
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.the-country advocating ofﬁ—ﬁhe-pig or kill-the-police or

something like that. And a ne&spaper man was furnished; say
some background information on” him which would héVe been in
the area of public source material whiéﬁ he could use in an
articls. =

Are we £eally, if the informatién is.true, the final

decision, it would seem to me, would be the newspaperman as

to whether he would uss any such information. -

I think if we concealed our motivas from the newspaper
man, or furnished false information, which I think we did in
one anonymous letter or something that I saw in all of this,
I would say that was improper.

Senator Huddleston. - Or_——

Mr. Adams. I think newsmen have sources. I think --

Senator Huddleston. Or convincing a cartoonist, for

instance, to draw a derrogatory cartoon about a collsge

professor who. certainly did not constitute a threat to the

violent overthrow of the government.
Mr, Adams. If anyone accuses us éf having ény great
success in trying to influsnce the press, I think that their
objectivity stands pretty high.
- Senator Huddleston. I think the point is whether there
was succgss or not, thers was aﬂ'eﬁfort.made. I'm glad to

hear you acknowladge now that it is almost an impossibility.

But more than that it ssems to me at the bsginning when
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these type-of téchniques were used, if seemed to indicats a
lack of confidence or faith in the American people to beliave
that'ﬁhey could not hear-ideag that ﬁight be contrary to their
own without being serious damagedl i

One of the great freedoms Qe have is the freedom of
hearing other ideas whéther we agree with them or not. I
tﬁiﬂk this is an area that we ars concerned with and one
technique which I hope is being discontinued and one that will
be by the time these hearings conclude and by the time proper
legislation is drawn.

Mr. Adams. Well, I ﬁhink yoﬁ can be assured that any
such techniques in that area died with COINTELPRO in 1971.

Senator Huddlestoﬁ.- That is comforting. ;

Mr, Adaﬁs. Yes.

The Chairman (presiding).. Thank you, Senator.

I have beén forced in and out by virtue of votes and other
Committeg business., I am not suré which Senators have hag
their opportunity to questioﬁ and which have not.

Senator Goldwater, ware yoﬁ next?

Sgnator Goldwaésr. I will not éake much time. I
apologi;g for'not having been here in the last two days. It
is going good, I have heard.

We havg heard tgstimony regarding the voluminous records,
I bslisve 500,000, maintained by the Bufeau.

How in your view have thsse records come to bs kept?
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For what purpose have they been kept and has the Bureau aver
undertaken to destroy or prune down any of these records?.
Mr., Adams. We have a number of racords. We are .
a bqsiness—like~organization. Wes reéorﬁ our activif%esi »And.
as ths staff knéws, they had access to a lot of recorded
material that is the praduct of what the FBI has done over
the years. |
-When we conduct an investigation, we maintain’the
results. ﬁe do have destruction procedures where after the
passage of ceartain time limits approved by the Archives
authoriéy, we are allowed to destroy certain files. Other

information we are required to put on microfilm. There is

a regular standard procedure for the destruction of FBI

“files. This has been.suspended, of course, during the

initiation of thsse hearinés and our files probably have
increased consideraﬁly,during this period begause we ars not
allowed to destfoy anything since the Commitfee comﬁenced
iﬁs hearings.

But we do have procedurses for destfoying thess that
are approvsd by fhe Archives, and a problem inherent in that
is maintaining information, what.should we Kkeep, what should
we obtain during an inveastigation, what should we rescord?

In the past we have beeg pratty consistent in recording

e . .

éverythihg we thought was relevant to the investigation., The

passage of the Privacy Act put certain rastrictions in. We

-
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.cannot collazct or maintain anything unless it is relevant to

an ongoing matter of which we have investigative jurisdiction;
But beyond aveﬂ tﬁn Privacy Act, the Attorney Gener&l
instituted a guidelines comﬁittee in tﬁis,area that we have
béen meeting diiigently with avery da?.and hopefully have
tried to aveoid this idea that we are for no good reason
maintaining a gossip, scandal; and unncesséry, irrelevant
material.

- .Sc once these guidelines are in some sort of finai
form, not to be adopted, then the Attorney General has
indicated that he is‘going to take it up with the various -
Congressional committess to get their input into it,‘éfter
which they will be published.

Senator Goldwatsr. Well, now these dossiers, I think
you can call them that prﬁbably;

Mr, Adams. I prefsr not té, but I accept the fact that
thgt is how they are referred to. .

Senator Goldwater. What do you call them?
) Mr., Adams. I call them files. To‘me, I gusss we all
have aur little hang=ups, but to me that is usually used in
some sinister connotation. It is probably not to you. - But
I will use whatever terminology you want {o use on this.

Senator Goldwater. I hope what you havs on me is not

e . .

called a dossier. B ot

Mr, Adams, WNo, sir, it's a collection of material.
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(General laughter)

Mr. Aaams; Of which you are aware.

Senator Goldwater. That's right.

N&% lgt me ask you, the.infOrmation you have would
probably bs on computer tape?

Mr. Adams. No, sir.

Senator Goldwater. 1It's not. Information that IRS
would have, is that computerized?

) Mr, Adams.. i£ may be. I'm not familiar with the exten
of theirs. We do have-cartain computer activities, such as
the National Criﬁe Information Center, or we have; I gusss,

7 or 8 million records. This is not the usuai file material,
This is, it consists of individuals concerning whom a
warrant is outstanding, stolen property, material such as
this. And also somé documented criminal history information

in the nature of prior arrest history. But not what I think

you are raferring to in the way of file material, reports,

intelligencé, this type of information.

JFK Law 11 (a)

Mr. Adams. No, sir.

Senator Goldwater. There's no such list that you know

 }
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of?

Mr. adams. I don't know whét other agencies have, but
the FBI doss not have such a list, do=ss not have such a
cgpabilitf to interface wichSuch.a lisé if such a list. |
exists.

Senator Goldwater. ﬁo you feél rather safe in éaying
then that no agency of governmént has_§u£ together such a

computerized total of all the information on the pesople that -
you hgve surveilled? |

Mr. Adams. Oh, I think it is sgfe to say I don't know
of any. Today I am not saying what d;es exist or doasn't
exist else&here.

Senator Goldwater. -In addition to the 500,000 records
that you hava, would I be correct in saying that you have
50 million data cards and that there's $82 million spent on
intelligence in the Fiscal year 1975 in maintaining this
library? |

Mr. idams._ No, I don't think thafqis correct. I think
ths fiéure of $82 million is what our budget people have
drawn up as being the total cost in a.giventyear of our
iﬁtellig;nce dperations, sacurity, criminal, organizsd crime,
the whole intelligenée field. But I don't relate it to the
méintenance qf any datg.cards.

Senétor GoldwaterL‘ Now one other area, and I think it

probably, according to the records, it does go back to '70.
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How did the Bureau EOme to place the so—cglled‘women's
1ib movament undar surveillance, and.I say sé-called‘ because
I think we discovered that there Qas no such organized movement.
Mr, Adéﬁst Thers were a lot of movements. It is my
recollection ~- I hévé not reviewaed the file in detail, but
it is my recollection that the case was originally opened
becaﬁse of indications that csertain groups wers attempting
to infiltrate or control the woman's l}beration movemnent .
The invastigation was conducted ana was' terminted several
yaars ago, as far as I know.

Senator Goldwater. Do you.know of any actions that ware

taken by the. Bureau as to the women's liberation movement

except to monitor it?

Mr, Adams. No. And the monitoring was for the purpose
of determining.the infiltration, and I don't know of any
actions taken against them.

Sgnator Goldwatar. That's ‘all I have, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you.

The Chairman.’ Thank you, Senator Goldwater.

‘Senator Hart, have you had an opportunity to question?

Senator Hart of Colorado. No, I have not.

The Chairman. Senator Hart.

Senator Hart %F Colorado. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

In'tﬁe testimony yesterday déveloped b§ the staff concarning

the last few days of Martin Luther King's life, we learned
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this information to pass on to the press, it did appear in the

ig06
that the Bureau in March of 1968 developed information to
be given to thz press criticizing Dr. King for staying in
a white-owned and Qperéted hotel, the ﬁoliday Inn in Memphis,
instead of the Lorraine. ‘

At some point during Dr. King's stay in Memphis, hs
moved from the Holiday Inn to Lorrainé.

To yéur knowledge, Mr. Adams, was that information ever
given to the press?

Mr. Adams. I have been unable to‘daﬁermine that. This
question was raised of me by the Civil Rights .Division of the
Departmant. ‘Apparently, they had had some inquiry along
the same lines several months ago. But my recollection of it
at ths timz, we éaw that this’action had bean proposed and
the memorandum bore ths initials, I baiieva it was the
initials, statensnt handled, and the initials of the agant
in tha External Affairs Division who assumed the ressponsibility
of saying handle it and initiated it.. | ‘

They contactad him and he said that he had no recollection
of the matter bﬁt the fact that‘he did éay handled didn't
mean that he was abls to do anything_with-ii. He was just
clearingtthat memorandum so it wéuld show action was taken,
and he doesn3t know.if ﬁe gave it to anyons or not.

" Svgator. Hart of Colorado.  Well, suffice it to say that

5

the facits ars that subsequant to the time the Bursau dsveloped
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local papers in Memphis.

Mr. Adams. There was ssma statement in the local papers,
not according to the terminology of the pr0po§ed‘state@ent that
was to Be given to him. There was somé comment made, if .T
recall, that Martin Lﬁthe; Ring gavé a press éonferencé
following the riots that followed one of his appaarances;
and that he gave that press conferénde in a ﬁotel, the Heliday
Inn Hotel. But it didn't héve any, af 1;ast the newspéﬁer
a?ticle itself didn't‘have any direct relation to acts takén.
‘ Senator Hart of Colorado. Well, according to soms
historians énd_paople who have commented on the circumstances,
they were fairly e#plicit in statiﬁg that the local press
was critical of him during that périeq for staying in the
white hotel, but I don't want +to makse a bié issue out of
that.

What was the name of ths agent'that you ralked to?

Mr, Adams. I didn't talk to him personally. People in
the Bureau that wsre working on this did and I believe|his
name was Linbaugh, L~i;n~5—a—u—g—h.

| Senator Hart of Colorado. If you éould provide that
namz to us, i would appreciate it.

Mr; Adams. I would bs élad to.

Sznator Hart of Co;ofado.~ Mr. Adams, was any effort

made during this entire COINTELPRO period to objectively

define what the New Left meant? What was your understanding
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Mr. Adams. They did have a definition of the New Left
distinguishing it from thé 014 Left. It was primarily to dis-
tinguish it from the, in the area thatuthe New Left was trying
to separate itseif from the old hidebound policies of the-
Communist Party or some‘of its links to the Communist Party.

Perhaps Mr. Wannall has a better definition of that.

Senator Hart of Colorado. It very definitely included those
who were opposed to the war, orgaﬁized groups that opposed the
war and felt strongly ébout racial injuétice in this country,
leaving the Communist Party aside.

Mr. Adams. People involved in the New Left movement were,
of course, aiso invol#ed in the Vietnam, aﬁti—Vietnam was
effort. |

Senator Hart of Colorado. What do you mean also?

That's what I'm trying to get out. What was the New
Left? If you didn't oppose.the war and you weren't involved in
civil rights groups, who else migh; &ou have been?

Mr. Adams. Well, the New Left was a -- did involve a
revolutionary phiiosophy. It wasn't related solely to the
anti-Vietnam effort.

Senator Hart of Colorado. Thomas Jefférson embodied a
revolutionary philosophy.

Mr. Adams. That's right. And the New Left activity

.

o .
exceeded -Thomas Jefferson's philosophy in that it did fit in

with the basic Communist philosophy.
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Senator Hart of Colorado. Every group that was placed unde

the efforts of the COINTELPRO supported the violent overthrow
of this country?

Mr. Adams.J The concept of COINTELPRO was directed towarad’
those organizations. I would have to refresh my mémory on each
one of the organizations that were targets of it, but they were
basically New Left, Communist Pafﬁy, Socialist Workers Party,
New Left, black extremiéts, white hate groups, those were the
five basics.

Senator Hart of Colorado. The Southern Christian Leader-
ship Conference? -

Mr. Adams. The Southern Christian Leadership Conference,

I don't know if it was involved specifically in COINTELPRO.

Three minor actions were taken against the Southern.
Christian Leadership Conference.

Senator Hart of Colorado. Wél;, its. leader, .I"think you
could say, for eight years was subject to.a lot more than three
minor actions.

Mr. Adams. That's right, and that gets into the other
area that the activities taken against him were primarily
COINTELPRO type activities but weren't really under the control
of -~

Senator Hart of Colorado. You're saying that basically
&

'every,orgahizapion and individual that was swépt into the

net of the five COINTELPRO nets supported'the violent overthrow
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of this country?

Mr. Adams. Well, not just the violent éverthrow of the
governmeént. It would have been o:ganizations that were threaten
ing and fomenting violence. I..don't believe it had to be
related to the actual overthrow of the government.

Senator Hart of Colorado. 1Is a street demonstration
violent?

Mr. Adams. It depends on where you are in relation to
what is taking place. If there are a lot of activities in

connection with street demonstrations that are not violent,

in deaths, so it just dépends on activity taking place and
the circumstances.

Our problem is we are given the responsibility by the
Attorney Generai to monitor demonstrations which have the
potential of violence. The question is, how do you find out,
at what point do yvou get in and monitor demonstrqtions to deter-
miné if that has a potential violence?

Senator Hart of Colorado. Well,.obviously what we're
told was here is, we have received testimony to the effect
that the FBI went out of.its.way to foment violence itself,
to encoufage-disruptions internally, to encourage hostiiities
and .conflict between.and among these groups in the hope that
;iolence woulé occur, éna therefore you could, say, go back to

the Director or the press or whomever and say look, this is
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Mr. Adams. I accept the allegation but I don't accept the
fact, the conclusion that, from what I ha&e seen in reviewing
these files in connection with our investigations, we don!t
foment violence. We don't permit as a ma£ter of policy our
informénts to act as provocateurs to engage in violence. I am
not denying it may have happenéd, but the FBI does not foment
yiolence, and the FBI, you know, has no --

Senator Hart of Colorado. You are using present.teiise
tverbs., - -I think --

Mr. Adams. We didn't then. I don't agree that our actions
in any event-were designed to foment violence.

Senator Hart of Colorado. I think there is plenty of.
doqumentation of the attempt to set the Black Panthers against
the Blackstone Rangers in Chicago. T

Mr. Adams; Well, I don't.consider that.plenty of evidence.
I think. the evidence to.the contrary is that one pf the.
organizations, when we got word that the Black Panther versus
US, we notified the local police that.this activity was going
to take place, and.the individual, so that we would prevent.
the killing which had come to our attention was going to take
place, and then the turndowns of various COINTELPRO actions,
there were specific statements made, that will not be
approved because it ;ight result iﬁ harm éo an individual,

physicél harm, and we have no indication from any of these
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actions under COINTELPRO that any violent act occurred, and I
have nét been presented with any by the staff froﬁ their far
more extensive inquiry.

S?nator Hart of Colorado. June 3rd, 1968, a memorandum
from the Special Agent in Charge of Cincinatti to the Director
of the FBI, the title of which is Counterintelligence Progfam,
Disruption of the New Left, a five page memorandum having to
do with Antioch College in Ohio. It is a long description of
the cq;lgge and background. There is a recommendation on page
3, Cincinatti recommends that counterintelligence action be
taken to expose-the pseudo-intellectual image of Antioch, and id
gives specifié-ways of doing that, and then the next page,
page 4, the desired result of action, force Antioch to
defend itself as an educational institution.

Where in the laws of this country or the charter of the
Federal Bureau .of Investigation does it.say that that Agé;;y
should.be forcing.any educational instituﬁion to defend . itself?

Mr., Adams. .I know of none.

Senator Hart .af Colorado. You would say this is stepping

beyond .the bounds .of .your authority?

Mr., Adams. I would say -- I'm not familiar with the total
action of what was there, but just on the surface I don't see
any basis for it. .

Seﬁ%ﬁor Hart of Colorado.. It ‘is my understanding that

participating field officers of the counterintelligence, the
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g 1 COINTELPRO activities were required to send in status letters
[=]
~N
‘ g 2 || and report in annual results.
g 3 . Is that correct?
4 Mr. Adams. Yes. -
5 Senator Hart of Colorado. What kind of results generally

6 were you looking for? What was considered success?

7 Mr. Adams. Well, it would be considered success, like

8 in one instance where an action was taken to create factionalisn
9 in the highest‘level of the Communist Party, and the results

10 || were that we were advised that the Communisty Party influence
11 || declined appreciably as a direct result of factionalism created
12 || at that level. That to us was a concrete result.

13 We had other results.where, well, you get in various

WARD & PAUL

14 || degrees. That is an extremely favorable degree. We had others)
15 || I think one was alluded to yesﬁerday or today where. a letter
16 || went on setting up a marital. strife. on. the. part of. someone.
17 | T don't see. any.basis. or. justification. for. that. I think that
18 is the.other. extreme. I think in the middle there were ones
19 || . that. fell into a. different degree.
20 - The only thing that I feel is we had 3000 actioms
21 || recommended. The Bureau ~- just like this Antioch one. I
F-92 don't know if the document shows whether that was approved or

23 not. I doubt that it was approved.

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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25 document that.~
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Mr,. Adams. Okay. Because there would be one. I would.
say the judgment in approving that is in question. But out
of 3000 recommended, the fact that 2000 approved shows that
there was some concern to try to .keep these to a proper level,
and I think the actual number of grossly improper activities
fortunately is rather small. I think there are a lot in there.

Well, ~“the whole program, we feel, should have been dis-
continued, and we don't have a program like it now, and we
wouldn't institute a program like it now.

Senator Hart of Colorado. It would be helpful to us if
now or in the future.you could recommend what steps we should
take, both ag the Committee and this Congress, to make sure
that doesn't happen, aside from just the assurances we are being
given here.

| Mr. Adams. Well, the main recommendation I make is that
we don't wind up on the point we have been. én in the pa;t
years that one time in. our history. Congress. is saying we ought
to be doing. something to stop. violence in the streets, murders,

blowing up.of buildings,. and at another. time they are saying

~you shouldn’'t have done. what you did, and that we make a

mistake when we react and try to identify one area and say that
is the voice of the people. What we need is a legislative
mandate which is the will of Congress in order to tell us what
our role should be.i% this area. I thipklthat is the main

thing that would come out of all of these, I hope, some more

NW 65360 Docld:32983543 Page 92




L

smn 8

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

WARD & PAUL

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

%

. 10

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

&)
‘own special informants?

1816
definitive guideline where we all know what the will of the
people is as expressed by Congress.

Senator‘Hart of Colorado. I believe my time is up.

Senator Tower (presiding) . .Mr. Adams, to return to the
business of informants which I initiated and was interrupted
by a vote, who selects an informant?

Mr. Adams. The basic responsibility is on our special
agent personnel who develop informants, the agent on the street.

Sengtor.Towér. Does the Special Agent in Charge in a given
area have control over the activities‘of an informant or a veto
on the use of a particular informant?

Mr. Adams. Not only the Séecial Agent in Charge, but FBI
headquarters. We maintain the tightest possible control of the
utilization of informants. We require Bureau approval to utiliz
a person as an informanﬁ.

Senator Tower. The Special Aéent in Charge has the power
to veto the use of an informant? | S |

Mr. Adams. Yes, sir.

Senator Tower. Does headquarters know who all the

.informants are?. . .

Mr. Adams. Absolutely. We do not allow hip pocket
informants. We require --
Senator Tower. Youidon't have the agents informed byhﬁheir

-

Mr. Adams. Absolutely not.
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Senator Tower. Are the criteria different for paid.and
for non-paid informers?

Mr. Adams. We have some informants over the years that hav
refused to accept payment, but generally the criteria for
both, I mean for ones that are paid is that it must be on a
COD basis, evaluated as to the value of the information.

Senator Tower. What protections are afforded to
informants?

Mr. Adams. Protections afforded them individuallyé

Senator Tower. Yes.

Mr. Adams. The greatest protection in the world we can
afford them is to maintain the confidential relationship which
they have adopted with the FBI, and the fact that those citizens
of the United States who, for whatever reason, decide to
cooperate with the FBI and cooperate with their government
in criminal and the security field, have that .confidentiality .
maintained, and beyond that confidentiality we are unable td1
afford them any protection,. any physical protection. We have
had informants murdered through disclosure. We have had them
subjected. to. other. violence. and. criminal. activities, and the
oniy.protection beyond maintaining the confidentiality is once
we have. used. them or.had.to.expose.them.for.séme"purpose, we
do.have. procedures. for. relocation. and. maintenance. of. them which
i;.utilized.qﬁite-freqﬁeﬁtly in the top h;odlum and the Cosa

Nostra type investigations.
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1 Senator Tower.. It is. my understanding now that 83 percent

2 of all: cases involve. some. use. of informants,- so that means that

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

3 the use is pretty.widespread. and. apparently very essential.

4 ﬁhat kind. of guidance. does the.FBI:give‘to these informants
5 to give them-any special training? Could you describe that kind
6 of. relationship in terms of guidelines, control, authority,

v what have you?

é Mr. Adams. Well, when an individual is being developed

9 as an informant, our main concern is whether he provides

10 ||.xreliable information and that the information he collects is

11 || collected by legal means. We don't permit an informant to

12 engage in anﬁ activity that an agent couldn't do legally

13 himself. In other words, you can't ‘have an extension of the

WARD & PAUL

14 || agent out here engaging in illegal acts, and the agent saying
15 I ébide by the law. This creates some problems, of course,

ig in the criminal field where you don't.Yecruit informants from
17 Ssunday schools. You recruit-informants-in areasvwhere'faey do

have knowledge of criminal activities. But we ewen had to

18
(]
8 19 open. investigations- and prosecute some of - our informants, be-
~N
J
a 90 cause. we: do. not. bend. from this,  that they are: not going to
5
§ 91 enjoy favorite. status. as. a- result. of their. relationship. with
2
W mgg |l US~- So. the agent covers all of this with an informant during
[72]
& 23 . the. discussions..
. ‘E 24 We. secure. backg(fround- information on. ‘the. informants. We
g )
25 do this to ensure, as best as possible, we are dealing with a
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§ 1 reliable, stable individual even though he may be engaged in
N
[~]
~N .
. g 2 an unstable activity, and we go through this period and consider

<
E K them more or less, in different terminology, probationary,

¥4 4 potential, verifying information:that he furnishes us, and

5 everytime when they report on the status of an informant, they

6 have to tell us what percentagé of his information has been

v verified by other means, by other informants or sources.

8 So we do have a continuing indoctrination whiéh is

9 supervised at FBI headquarters.

- 10 " sSenator Tower. You said you don't recruit your informants
11 || from Sunday school class. Being an ex-Sunday school teacher, I

12 || resent that, but --

13 Mr. Adams. I am talking in the criminal field. Many of

WARD & PAUL

14 || our security informants come from a very fine background.

15 Senator Tower. But tﬁis leads me into this. Sometimes,

16 || then, you might recruit people that you kpow have committed

17 || criminal acts.

18 Mr. Adams. That's true.

19 Senator Tower. Do you promise him immunity from future

20 présecution in many instances to securé their. cooperation?
.21 Mr. Adams. No. Now, the only exception to that would be
oo || we may have an ongoing, it is what you call an informant -- I
23 || believe your question is addressed to someone that we are

& ' .
24 || actually considering in an informant status.

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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25 Senator Tower. Yes.
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Mr. Adams. We do have situations,where during an"investi-
gation we target on one individual, the lower rung, and the
United States Attorney and the Department offer immunity. We
don't. And say, you cooperate, and we go up the ladder to6 the
next level, and in some of these éases we have gone up through
successive stages until we get the main honcho who we feel is
the proper target of our investigation.

Senator Tower. Getting on another subject, does the
FBI stil} request bank audits?

Mr. Adams. Bank audits? Do you mean do we still have
access to bank records?

Senator Tower. Yes.

Mr. Adams. Yes, sif, we do.

Senator Tower, And éo you obtain access with or without
warrants?

Mr. Adams. We obtain acceés without warrants.

Senator Tower. Without warrants?

Mr. Adams. Yes, sir.

Senator Tower. Is the subject notified in advance by the
FBI when you obtain one without a warrant?

Mr. Adams. No, sir.

. Senator Tower. Are thef notified by the bank, or is he
notified subsequently by the FBI?

Mr. Adamd. No. We do get subpoenas in many cases, not

warrants, but we do get subpoenas in many cases, but in some

NW 85360 Docld:32989543 Page 97




smn 13

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000

10
11
12

13

WARD & PAUL

14
15
16

‘end 8 17

=2
0
O
e
o]
o]

18
19
=20
21
22
23

24

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

25

NW 65360 Docld:32989543 Page 98

1821

cases a bank will make available to us records without subpoena.
When it-comés time for ﬁtilizing that information we do iésue
a subpoena for the information.

Senator Tower. Do you have-.legal authority to gain .
access to these records? _

Mr. Adams. Yes, sir, we do.

Senator Tower. Without a'subpoena, without a court
document?

Mr. Adams. There is no law that I know of that forbias
us access. There have been several court decisions, including
some circuit courts that disagree with each other, but I think
the current finding is that the bank records are the 'records
of the bank and this does not violate any First Amendment or
other Amendments in connection with it.

Senator Tower. Do you make similar requests of S&Ls and
other, and credit unions and other financial institutipns?

Mr. Adams. I would assume thg‘same would provide there.

The Chairman (presiding). Thank you, Senator Tower.

I just have a question or two. We are going to try to
conclude this morning because the Committee has a hearing, a
business meeting at 2:00 o'clock this afternoon and for the
information of the members, that meeting will take place in
room 3110 of the Dirksen Senate Office Building.

e . .
And while I am making announcements, I think I should say.

that tomorrow between the hours of 9:00 o'clock in the morning
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and 1:00 o'clock in the afterﬁoon, the Committee will report
its findings and make its recommendations to-the Senate in
connection with our investigation into-alleged involvement of
the United States in certain assassination plots, and attémpts
directed against foreign leaders.

The Committee, as you know, has made én exhaustive investi-
gation of this issue. It has taken some six months; 75 witnesse
have been interrogated, over 8000 pages of testimdny have -been
taken, mountains of documents ﬁave been analyzed and digested,
and the report will be a detailed accounting to the American
people of that evidence, together with the findings and
recommendations of the Committee.‘

Initially these disclosures will be made to the Senate in
secret session, after which the Committee has previously voted
to'make-the report public.” Therefore, it is anticipated that
at 2:30 tomorrow afternoon in this room,. the caucus room,
following that secret session. of the Senate, the'Committee will
meet with the press for the purpose of. answering such
questions as the press may wish to address to the Committee on
the assassination report.

Now, the last few questions I would like to put to you,

Mr. Adams, have to do with some confusion in my mind concerning

the purpose of the FBI in monitoring the Women's Liberation

movement, what was ghat? What was‘thag éurveillance done for?

Why were you involved in monitoring that movement?
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‘'is what the documents reveal. For example, if you will turn --

‘one, two, three, four pages where you find under the caption
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Mr. Adams. It was basically, as I recall, I have not

reviewed the files, but from the information that I have

to be inf;ltrating and attempting to exert control over it. Thalt
investigatlon was based or_initiated on this fact.

The Chairman. But you never found, did you, that the
Women's Liberation movement was seriously infiltrated, influenced
or éontrolled by Communists.

Mr. Adams. No, and the case.wés c;osed. I would put them
in the position of comments we have made earlier about the
press, that I don't think anybne is going to dominate or controll.
That is a very independgnt groué.

The Chairman. Well, we are trying to keep the country that
way.

Mr. Adams. That's riéht.

The Chairman. And the kind of thing that disturbs me

you have the document book there with you. If you will turn
to Tab 5, 5-4, can you find that? Can you move your thumb
through the pagés to 5-47?

Have you found that? It's in the upper right hand
corner, 5-4, under Tab 5.

Mr, Adaﬁs. Yes.

] T )
The Chairman. Then, if you will turn back beyond that,
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Origin, Aims, and Purposes, a description of the Women's
Liberation movement in Baltimore, Maryland.

Now, I call your attention to this because it seems to me
to typify the whole problem_oﬁ this generalized kind of
surveillance 6§er activities of American citizens. Here is
the report, if you will-r;;dnwith me this paragraph, the
report on the group reads as follows: "The Women's Liberation
movement in Baltimore, Maryland began during the summer of
1968. There was no structure or a .parent organization. . There
were no rules or plans to go by. It started out as a group
therapy session with young women who were either lonely or
confined to the home with small children, getting together to
talk out their problems.‘ Along with‘this they wanted a
purposeland that was to bé free women from tﬂe humdrum
existence of being only a wife and mother. They wanted
equal opportunities that ﬁen héve in work and in so;ié£y. They
wanted their husbands to share in the housework and in rearing
their children. They also wanted to go out and work in whatevex
kind of jobs they wanted, and not to be discriminated against
as women."

Now, can you. find anything in that report that in anf way
suggests  that these women were engaged in improper or unilawful
activity?..

Mr. Adams. Not in that one. I believe there was another

report, though, giving the origin of it, which went into a
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b 1 little more description of what our basic interest was.
o
~N
.g 2 The Chairman. Can you tell me, because this is the report
E S I have --
4 Mr. Adams. Well, I am given here -
5 The Chairman. What other, if there was some sinister

6 activity connected with this group that isn't laid out in the
7 document --

8 Mr. Adams. I was given a work paper here which reaas,

Y "Women's Liberation Movement. Investigation of captioned

10 | movement was initiated by our New York Office in April 1969
11| as the Women's Libber movement was described as a loosely

12 || structured women's movement comprised of individuals with

WARD & PAUL

13 || varying ideologies from liberal to New Left persuasion, some
14 [ of whom ﬁaalexhibited an affiliation with and/or sympathy

15 for several organizations of investigative interest to this
16 Bureau, namely, thefstuhents for a Democratic. Society, Black
17 Panther Party, the Vietnam Peace Parade. Committee, Venceremos
18 || Brigade,. the Socialist. Workers Party, with its youth group

19 | the Young Socialist.Alliance."

20 The Chairman. May I stop you at this point?
21 Mr, Adams. Yes.
22 .The Chairman. You are reading from a paper which has to

23 || do with the origination of an investigation coming out -of

24 | New York, . are you not?:

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003
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The Chaifman. I am reading from a document that relates
to the Women's Liberation Movement in Baltimore, and the finding
concerning it in the summer of 1968. My question hasn't to do
with whatever original purpose the FBI éought by initiating
this kind of surveillance in New York,.but with a finding
made concerning the Women's Liberation movement in Baltimore
which I have just- read to you; and I think you would agree with
me that women do have the right to gét together to talk about
humdrum existence and equal opportunities with men and equal
opportunities for work in our society, don't they? That is
not a subvergive activity.

Mr? Adams. Well, but what you have here is the setup of
our investigative activity. We had New York, which was the

office of origin of the investigation. You have other offices

that were checking to determine what influence there was.

.In addition, in New York, to the New York office, lay the fact

that interwoven.with. the Women's. Liberation movement goal for

.equal rights for women, there was.an advocacy certainly of

militancy and violence in achieving theii.goals.
Now, Baltimore is one office, and I believe that even
there in one of the reports --—
‘The Chairman. You keep taking me back to New York.
Mr. Adams. Right.
e . .

The Chairman. And I keep taking you back to Baltimore.

And the reason I do that is because if you turn two pages.
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back from this particular report, which has to do with the
Baltimore organization, the question is whether based upon that
findiﬁg the investigation should continue of the Baltimore
group, and the decision is that you will continue to follow
and report on the activétégs_oﬁ the group.

And I just wondered why --

Mr. Adams. This is a problem that we have, that we do
have organizations where sometimes the -- the Women's Liberation
group is not a good example because that was washed out, but
we do have organizations where --

The Chairman. What was washed out? Not the Women's
Liberation movement?

Mr. Adams. No, the investigation indicated there was
no concern or no reason to be concerned about it.

But where you do have an organization that has branches
in many areas of the country, and you start with one place and
it looks like you have a subversive organization, you do have
to see, well, is this carried. out. throughout the organization
or is it just one chapter.or one group? In other words, not
even an organizational problem..

The Chairman. But you see, in this =-- the trouble with
that is in this Baltimore organization you say in your own

report that it was independent, there was no structure or
&

plans, so it isn't a part

- of a national controlled and directed organization called by
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your own admission -

Mr. Adams. I believe this report had some subsequent
pagesrthat aren't included in here that did show some additional
activity or influence.

The Chairman. I am told by the staff that this summary is
‘accurate, and the only other thing contained was that these
women had affiliations with an organization that had protested
the war in Baltimore.

Mr. Adams. I think there were some other items.

The Chairman. That is the only other association that
we have been able to determine.

Now, in a case of this kind, do you still carry -- you say
this has been closed. Apparently the Women's Liberation move-
ment is no longer under suspicion by the FBI and the case has
been closed. What happens when the“case is closed? Are those
women's names still left in. the files?

Are they forever more contained?

Mr, Adams. Yes.

The Chairman. In the system? Yes. There is no -- yes.

Mr. Adams. Yes.

The Chairman. Pretty soon’you will have us all in the
system.

I mean, if there is no way, even after surveillance has

been terminated to terminate the refergnces of individuals

through the files of the system, you will one day have us all,
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won't you?

Mr. Adams. Well, I would say.as part of a normal business
record, when we do make a judgment that an organization should
be investigated and we investigate it, and then we find activiti
but we make a conclusion that there is no additional problem
here, this is a record of our official action. Now, if we
destroy it, at what point do we get into a situation of being
accused of doing things and then destroying things to keep from
showing what we do?

The critical thing on this is whether we are able, and we
do set up safeguards, where information in our files is not

nisused at a later date, and that is what these guideline .

committees are all about.
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Tape 940 1 o .
& 1 The Chairman., Do you have any idea of how many names of
N
[~} .
‘ ] 2 Americans you kesp in your files all as a result of ths
< : ’ )
E 3 cumulative effect of all of these surveillances in all of

4 these cases?

5 Mr, Adams. ©No, I don't.

6 | - Tha Chairman. It's in thé millions, isn't it?

V] Mr, Adams. Wa have 6 1/2 million files.:

g fhe Chairman. You.hava 6 1/2 million files?

o | ‘Mr, Adams. Yes, sir.

10 The Chairman. And there are surely names of more than

11 || one pesrson typically in a file, aren't they?

-l .
E 12 Mr, Adams., But it is a rather large country.
&
‘ g 13 ' - The Chairman. That's a large number of files to start
5.

14 | with, and if you have multiple names in them, you ars quickly
15 || up in to the, you know, 20, 30, 40lmillion.

16 Mr, Adams. Right. But many of these'files ars

17 applicant files. They are not all subversive files. They are
18 rot all criminal fileé. We have a‘million crimes of viclence
19 each year.

20 There is a million people.

21 The Chairman. Suie, and I wish you had more time to

"9 spend on those crimes of violence.

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003

23 Mr, Adams. I do too.
e )
. 24 The Chairman. There we agres.
25 ‘Mr. Adams. Right.
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The Chairman,. What I woriy about is this. You say there!
no way to know when to close a f£ila. These were surveillange
files, or originally opened up to determine whether organization
might have subversive connections. - - . .8

There are names in these.fiies, so some demagogue comes
along and says against some public fiéure that his name is
contained in a certain f£ile to be found in the subversive
files of the FBI and there it is. I& has not.made-a misstatement
at all. But to the American psople that man's name and
reputation has bssn scarred.

Mr, Adams.- And I hope this Committee recognizes th;t
and recommaends legislation that would enforce strong punitive
or criminal violatio#s against misuse of information in the
files, wWe”feel this way, CIA feeis this way. Ws recognizs
we have a lot of Sansiti§e-information in it. We fire our
employses if we find them misusing information. We feal
we need adéitional sanctiéns in this area.

I don't think we can sver stop the accumulation of
information. I don't know an investigative agency in ths
world, a law enforcemant agency, that does no£ have to
accumulate information. And we are working on guidelines
as to how to get rid of the irrelsvant information, how to
elimina%g matarial that rsally @oes not nead to be kept,
that ws hops we will be abls o come to Congress with these

guidelines bsfore too long, which will help address itself
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to just soms of these problsans.

The Chairman. Wall, you may be assursd that'the
Committee sharas your objective in this regard and we will
be working with you énd the Degartment‘cf Justics and others
to try and change thé laws_to give a greater measure of
protection to the First Amendment rights of tﬁe American people.

" I have no furthar_quéstions. Are there'aﬁy other
questions. | ‘ |

Senator Mondale?

Senator Mondale, Mr, Adams, esarlier, in inquiring aboﬁt
the basis for investigatigg Dr. King, I thought I heard.two
bésic justifications. One, suspicion and fear of Communist
influsnce or infiltration. And secondly, "that he cdnstituts
a threét to the success of the Negro mévement.;

Did I understand that sescond basis?

_ Mr., Adams. No. The first I was talking about was not
suépicion but information indicating Communist influence.
The second was on this:qusstioh oé motivation that vou raissad,
I don't know what their motivs was to éat to some of thess
other activitiess in order to discredit and remove him, but it
was a quastion -- apparsntly, they must have felt that he
was a thieat to either as shown in the files the Prasidené
gnd_Attorne§ General expressed concern abgu; the civil rights

movement and "his continued affiliation with some of these

psople.
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Senator Mondale.. Wouid you agrse that‘it would not be
a proper basi;Afofuan investigation for\the FBI or any othsr
gov;rnment official to bs concerned-abdﬁt the succsss of ths
negro movement? - - - |

In other words, that is not a valid =-

Mr. Adams, ; have no pfoblem.

Senétor Mondale. All right; So let us take the one
ground that appears to have justified the invsstigation of
Dr. Xing and thé investigation of the women's liberation |
movement -~ the fear that "dangerous influences might
infiltrate these organizations." |

Suppose it is true. Suppose that a Communist did
have influenée over Dr. King, or suppose an SDS membsr
infiltrated and bzcame a dominant influence in a chapter of
the women's liberation movement and you established it as
a fact. What woﬁld you'do?

Assuming that we can't get into this harassing and so
on, you‘agrée that that no longsr has an§ validity. So what?
What do you have? ~

Mr. Adams. We have poteniial violations which might
arise; whicﬂ rargly come to fruition and havean't for many
years, but we do have an intelligence responsibility under

e . .
the dirsctives from ths Prasident and the Attorney Gensral. -

That is, with a revolutionary group,” like the Communist Party
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has taken over control of a domastic group and the Communist
Party is operated by the Soviet Union. We would furnish that
information as we do. Evary copy of our reports goes to the .
Department of Justice. ’ ' | - : Cle
Sanator Mondale. -Righﬁ. But i just want to get the
King cassa because“és I understood, he was being investigated
for the reasoﬁ that it was feared that a Communist or
Communists who‘werg suépectﬁd of being Communists, or
known to bes Communists, were gaining. influence over him,
Suppose you established that. What present use or
nesd is there for that information?
Mr. Adams. I feel that the Presidept,ithe Attorney
Ganeral, the Exscutive Branch, needs t; know the axtent of
a foreiéhrdirected Communisf"bfganization,.its inflﬁence and
sffact on the Unitsd States of America..
Senator Mondale. All right. So if such informa;ion
is wvalid and'an“investigatién to seek it are necessary, is
thera‘any limit on thse investiga;iva authority of the FBi?
We have just hesard about the women's liberation movement
where we were fearful that.Néw Left, SDS types might havs
an influence.  That justified that investigation. Ve now
have your statemgnt that ws were fearful that some Communists
might have influence over Dr. King, and thérefore, he was
thoroughly investig;;ed. o R .

Are thare any limits.than on who can be investigated?
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Mr. Adams. Wsll, the only limits are that we must
relate it to a séatutory basis of ons of the-PresidentiaL
guidalines we have or the criteria wes have, which criteria
are receiving scrutiny aé the prasent time by Congress. - -They
hava in the past by the*Departméﬁt of Justice, and this is the
area.of guidelinss. This whole area of domestic security is
Wﬁat we need guidelines in. |

Senator Mondale. Right. Ahd'you would agree, ws talked
about this earlier, that being a Communist is not a cr;me;

| Mr. Adams.r NQ; it has not been a crime. |

Senator Mondale. So that the whole basis for this has

. to apparently stem from a Prssidential dirsctive, you think

has’ tasked you- to do this.

Mr. Adams. Yes.

Senator Mondale. Juét a few other points.

In 1970, 11/6/70, a telsgram from Newark to the Director
went Fforth proposing that the following telegram be sent:

"Woxrd reqeivéd, Food donated to party by.anti—liberation
white pigs contained éﬁison. .Symptoms:‘.cramps, diarrhea,
sevare stomach pains.. Desﬁroy all food donated for conQention
suspectaed of poison. |

"However, still required to meet your quota. Signed,
Ministrf of Informagéon."

And this was a telegram that was ‘to be sent from Oakland,

California to the Jersey City, Naw Jerssy headquarters. The

g
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telegram went on further, " It is suggested that the Bureau

-then‘consider having the laboratory treat fruit, such as

oragges,.wiih mild léxativa type drug by hypodsrmic negdle
or othsr appropriate method apd ship fruit as a donation from
a fictitious person in Miami. to the Jerssy City headquartsrs.

The answer then from tha Director of the fBI:

"The Bursau cannot authorize the treatiﬁg of fruit to
be shipéed to Jersey City becausa of lack of contrdl over the
treated frﬁit iﬁ,transit.‘ However, Newarks's proposed
telegram.régarding food collected for the Revolutionary
Pesople's Constitutiénal Convention has merit."

How did you sver get to é point liks that?

Mr, Adans. i don't know. What was the response from
Newark and then the final answer taken?

Senator Mondale. It was turn=d down because thgy
couldn't control transit, but thay thoughg it was a good idea.

Do you think t#at‘s'a good idsa?

Mr. Adams, No, I don't. I think that -~

Senator Mondale. How did we ever ggt to the point that
this kind of insans suggestion violating everyone's civil
liberties based on govarnment-sponsorsd fraud? How does
anyong &ver cénsi@er something like tﬁat?

Mr., Adams. I don't know.

&« R
&a

Saanator Mondals. One firal point.

When we interviswad one of your former employess, hs
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rafgrredifé sométhing I never heard of before called a no-
contact list. He did it Jjokingly because he said when the
Pope agresd to sse Martin Luéhar.xing, he was surs he would be
put on. the no-contact list thersafter. - L

Can you tell me what.that list is?

Mr. Adams. Not in any specific-detail; I know that at
one time there was.é, there.would ba é‘list that if an agent
interviewed an individual and this individual creaéed a storm
or a ruckus and we didn't want some other agént stumbling

out thers and interviewing the sams= person, that we would make

sure that they were aware of the fact that further contacts

6f this individual would rasult in a probleﬁ.

Senator Mondale. All right. Now on 6/24/71, in a
meﬁo to Clyde Tolson, it refefs to a conference on 8/26/71
with certain -- it looks likg about 10 members of the FBI.

And this is what it séys:

"Purguant to your instruction, members of the confersnce
were briefed concerning-recent atteﬁpts by various nswspapers
and reporters to obtain information about or from FBI
personngl. Members were specifically advissd that thers %ould
bs absolutely no conversations with or answers from any of
ths feprasantatiVes of the Washington" -- something. Oh here,

from the iashington Post, New York Timss, Los Angeles Times,
@ - B . e " .

'CBS and BC.

"The only acceptables answer to such inguiries is no
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" comment.”

Now Senator Huddleston sarlier asked about efforts to
influence newspapers. and media outlst.

Does this trouble you, a decision not to answsr qusstions

‘ffom certain selectad media outlets?

Mr. Adamé. It is not the policy today. I think this

has been aired in the past. There was a period of tims .

wharein Mr. Hoover, in raacting to criticism from éoma of thase.
newspaper man, where he felt he hadn't bssn given a fair
shake, or for some other reason, that he felt that they should
be told no comment, and he instructed they be told no comment.
The motivations I am_not in a posiéion to discuss, but
I can tell you that there has bsan no suéh policy in the
last several years‘that I knoﬁxof. .
“Senator‘Mondale. If.you could submit for us, if you
can find it, the no~contact list, I would.appreciata that.
I have some other .questions I.will submit for ths
record, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Very wall. I just have one final féllow—up
qgestioﬁ on Ssenator Mondala's‘interrogation.

I continue to be somewhat fascinated by how long thsss

investigations go, and when, if ever, they are stoppsad.

Apparently they never comz out of the filss,. whatever is
ppa
_ @& . . .

<.

found. 3But Senator Mondale raisad the point of a suspicion

that in the Martin Luther XKing case, an advisor, he was
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getting advics from'a person who had or was thought to have
Communist leanings.

And so without using the ﬁame; bgcause we are tryiﬁg to
protect 'privacy as we conduct'thiS‘inﬁéstigation - : b
' Mr. Adams. I'think-we have a little more problém than
that, too, s§nator._ - |

The Chai?ﬁan. I am'ﬁust using a Mister X in place of
;he name. - What I am trying to-get at is when the Bureau,
what‘the criteria is for pursuing an investigation, for
pﬁrsuing the matter, and this is the kind of a stétement that
leaves me so perplexed. This has to do with a reply to the
New &ork office by.th; Bureau here in Washington.

" The part I read to you is as follows:

"The Bureau does not agraze with the .expressed belisf
of theﬁﬁew York office that Mr. X is pot ;ympathetic to the
Party cause. Whilé there may not be any direct‘evidence that
Mr, X is a Comﬁunist,ineither.is there any substantial
evidence that he is anti-Communist.”

And so the directions are to continue the invastigation
cf-tﬁis matter. "And in cases of this kind, do you pursus
the.investigation until. you prove the negative?

Mfg Adams. ©No. I believe in tbat particular case, if
i? is thg one I am thinking about, #hat thers was evidence
that at ons tgﬁa ke had ‘been a Communist and that thers was

a. question of whether the office felt -- well, it's liks we
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havé Lhad some situations whers a person comes out and publicly
dis&vbWs their former 1ganings.

Do you take them at words right away after they have
baan eﬁgaged in %iolent activities, or éo you wait until -
you datermine‘that they really have carried through ths dis—
avowed practice? - |

: That‘é a gray area. This one sesms like on the ‘wording

i;se;f, would seem iike an akﬁrema philésophy, leaning towards
averyons has to prove in the United States they are not.
a Commun;st, and I can assure that is noﬁ a policy of the
Burzau and does not fit into the ;riteria of our general
investigative matters.

I jus?’feel that thers is more to it than just that
brizsf paragraph.

The Chairman. That particular kind of philbsophy has

kept up in cur life from tims to time. I remember during

the days of McCarthyism in this country, we came very close

to the point where pe&éle had to prove that:they were- not
now or had never been a Communist-in‘order to establish tﬁem—
selves as patriotic citizens.
‘ Mrf Adams. That's right. Tﬁat's true.
The Chairman. And when I sse standards of this kigd-
or criteria qfwthis kipd}emarging, it worrie; me very much.

I have no further quastions. I want to thank you

both. If theres:are no further gqusstions, I want to thank
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you both for your testimony this morning. It has been very
helpful to the Committee, and the Committee will stand adjourned
until- 2:00,

Je will stand adjournsd in,publid session. Our next
public sassion will be 2:30 tomorrow afternoon for purposes
of press questiéning on the assassination report.

(Whereupon, at 1:07 o'élock p.m., ths Committesrédjournsé
to recon&ene at 2:30 o'clock p.m., Thursday, November 20,

1975.)




